



Mark Falso

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Mark Falso

Final Edition

April 2018

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

© 2018 Mark Falso All Rights Reserved. Final Edition. First e-publishing.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, without the prior written permission of the publisher, except in the case of brief quotations embodied in critical reviews and certain other noncommercial uses permitted by copyright law. For permission requests, write to the publisher, addressed "Attention: Permissions Coordinator," at the address below.

Fonts used on cover: Easter by Kingthings and Christmas by Chris Hansen.

King James Bible in this e-book is given Final Authority by God Almighty.

DEDICATION

To the One and Only Lord and Saviour Jesus Christ, the Son of the Living God.

To all of the Believers of Jesus Christ.

To all of the religious people who needed to hear the Truth.

CONTENTS

Dedication	7
Introduction	12
Chapter One: The Christmas and Easter We Know	15
History of Celebrationism	
Chapter Two: The Origin and	
Meaning of Christmas.	
The Gospels	
Gospel of Mark	
Gospel of Luke	
Calendar	54
Pregnancy.	56
The Feast of Unleavened Bread/Passover scenario	61
Feast of the Weeks	64
Feast of the Tabernacles.	65
Course of Abia	71
Four Blood Moons.	74
The Bethlehem Star	76
Chapter Three: Good Friday and Easter	79
The Timeline Break Down.	
Lazarus Risen from Dead.	
Saturday Evening-Supper	
Saturday/Sabbath Day Mount of Olives-Saturday/Sabbath Day	

Palm Sunday AM: Triumphal Entry into Jerusalem97
Palm Sunday AM: Regional Market in Temple Mount97
Palm Sunday-Most of Day: Jesus healing people in Temple97
Palm Sunday Evening-Jesus Left to Find Lodging
Monday Morning-Jesus returned to Jerusalem100
Noonish - Jesus Departed from the Temple 100
About 12:30 PM- Jesus returns to Mount of Olives
1 – 2 PM Monday Afternoon Meeting with High Priest
Passover Sacrifice- First Day of Feast of Unleavened Bread-Tuesday
Late Monday Afternoon-Satan Entered Judas Iscariot
Monday Evening, 7 p.mish. The Lord's Supper. (Feast of Unleavened Bread) 103
About 9 p.m. Monday Night (Jewish Tuesday Night) – Peter Gasped
About 9:45 p.m., Monday Night, Jesus Prayed at the Garden
Likely 12:45 A.M. (Modern Tuesday)-Judas Lead Group to Arrest Jesus 105
1 A.M., Tuesday – The Arrest106
Around 2 A.M., Tuesday – Jesus was taken to Sanhedrin
4 to 5 A.M., Tuesday- The Rooster Crowed
5 A.M., Tuesday- Judas Hanged himself109
5 or 6 A.M., Tuesday Jewish Priests and Jewish Soldiers brought Jesus to Pilate.
Likely 8 A.M., Tuesday Morning, Jesus was send to Herod
Likely 10 A.M. to 12 Noon, Tuesday Morning, Pilate scourged Jesus
3 P.M Tuesday, the Jury Was the Public

Late Afternoon till Next Morning – Jesus was scourged, prepared for Cross 117
Good Wednesday, likely 6 A.M. to 7 A.M. – Walk with The Cross over Shoulder 118
9 A.M3 P.M. Good Wednesday—Jesus on the Cross
About 9:30 A.M. – The Two Thieves on crosses next to Jesus
Between 9 a.m. and around 2 p.m.—High Priest, Passerby mockery
About 11 A.M. – The Thieves Next to Jesus125
12 Noon – Darkness Rolled In127
Moments before 3 P.M. – Jesus thirst and spoke128
4 P.M. to 6 P.M. Good Wednesday – Joseph and Others Buried Christ
Chapter Four: The Resurrection and Ascension to Heaven
6 P.M. Thursday (Judaism) Night (Modern Wednesday Night)137
From Thursday Night Judaism Calendar to Saturday evening just before 6 P.M 141
6 a.m. First Day of the Week- Sunday142
Chapter Five: How to Get To Heaven 147
About the Author
Bibliography And Thanks

INTRODUCTION

This book I wrote self-commentary after researching about the birth and death and risen from the Dead of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ, the Son of the Living God. This is to show when Jesus was born and when He died. Everything according to God. The scriptures here are focused on historical fact in the Gospels and early Acts about Jesus Christ, not prophecies from Old Testament.

The purpose is to show when He was born and when He died, risen from Dead and ascend to Heaven, period. It is quite detailed commentary regarding about Jesus Christ's life. After all, the main purpose was to come to die on the Cross for us as said in John 3:16 and He replaced all the lambs that were sacrificed during Passovers throughout the years till He Himself replaced lambs and became the Lamb of God as the scriptures told us. Of course, Jesus came and died for us. And the purpose was clear throughout history His life given on the Cross as measured correctly by period of time. Even with His birth. Jesus was born during Feast of Tabernacles. That is, Jewish Thanksgiving. God gave us bread to eat for Thanksgiving, instead, this certain time, God gave us the Bread of Life-Jesus Christ who was born in order to die some 33 plus years later.

God is perfect. God has the glory that made all this perfection. Why? He must fulfilled the prophecy but mainly to give us His love. His gift for each of us is life forever with Him. And thus, the perfect timing of His life on Earth. Everything has a meaning. Praise God.

May this book be good tool for pastors and Bible College students to use for understanding the Fundamentals of Jesus's birth and death-burial-risen and ascend to Heaven worked.

First was reviewing about Christmas that was much inaccuracies that it was not the date of Christ's birth. The Feast of Tabernacles is correct. And Easter, well, Passover and Resurrection Day is properly accurate than "Easter".

I am not a Bible College Graduate nor a Seminarian Theologian Major writing this. I did not have the money for this. This would have been an equivalent of a dissertation theory in the seminary regarding about Jesus Christ's life. I pretty much prefer this eBook as a commentary for free rather than as a submission of a theology dissertation theory. I supposedly can have their reviews and have results from respectful seminary professors. I might find a satisfactory result from such group of professors regarding this commentary/thesis.

Thank you for reading this and God bless.

In Christ,

Mark Falso

CHAPTER ONE: THE CHRISTMAS AND EASTER WE KNOW

Folly La la la... Ho Ho Ho! Oh the Christmas we joy with the red and green splash here and there... the Christmas tree lights and the Christmas decoration there and there too! Oh the must have the dreams of white Christmas. Ho Ho Ho, Santa Claus is coming to town! Er, down the chimney or you mean at the mall near you?

Oh see the Easter bunny hop and hop away and the colorful eggs on Easter Sunday. Oh both with the candies and gifts you shall give to your children. Ohhh, the excitement of Christmas and Easter.

Wait a minute. Did I miss something? Yes, that is the norm everyone today miss something. Of course I am writing this as I am in your shoes. You forgot someone. Yes, someone the most important of all and namely right the One and Only Begotten-Jesus Christ, the Son of the Living God. Yes, Churches are even forgetting Jesus Christ and they celebrate Christmas and Easter!

That is a shocking! True! They have left out Jesus Christ because they want the festive not to hurt the feelings of the little children and now, the Liberals. You may ask why I

wrote the L word that the Conservatives dislike hearing. Yes, Liberals do not like those holidays. It is quite ironic and hypocrite of themselves if they do not like Christmas. They forgot Christmas is pagan. Yes! The very word I said, pagan. Let's explain all about Christmas and Easter in this chapter shall we? You are in for a shock. There are numerous of books written on this subject even the Holy Bible! Yes! The Holy Bible even spoke against such pagan religion. They did not even have the word Christmas in the Bible but Easter, yes. Of course, Easter was used in Acts 12:4. But that is not the same. Because you have to use any of the four Gospels to realize the importance of the Cross, Death, and Burial and Resurrection of Jesus Christ from the Dead. But also throughout Old Testament and New Testament regarding Christ.

Easter in King James Bible, Acts 12:4 as stated-

Acts 12:4 --

And when he had apprehended him, he put him in prison, and delivered him to four quaternions of soldiers to keep him; intending after **Easter** to bring him forth to the people.

But if you look at it carefully, if you will look at the Bible. It did not say it was the Gospels. It was the Book of Acts. Long after Christ but during the Apostles' era. The Early Church with the Apostles and Paul and the missionaries at the time. That Easter in Acts 12:4 is different meaning. However, we will look at Concordance in a moment.

Please read the first few verses of Acts chapter 12.

Acts 12:1-11--

1 Now about that time Herod the king stretched forth his hands to vex certain of the church.

2 And he killed James the brother of John with the sword.

3 And because he saw it pleased the Jews, he proceeded further to take Peter also. (Then were the days of unleavened bread.)

4 And when he had apprehended him, he put him in prison, and delivered him to four quaternions of soldiers to keep him; intending after Easter to bring him forth to the people.

5 Peter therefore was kept in prison: but prayer was made without ceasing of the church unto God for him.

6 And when Herod would have brought him forth, the same night Peter was sleeping between two soldiers, bound with two chains: and the keepers before the door kept the prison.

7 And, behold, the angel of the Lord came upon him, and a light shined in the prison: and he smote Peter on the side, and raised him up, saying, Arise up quickly. And his chains fell off from his hands.

8 And the angel said unto him, Gird thyself, and bind on thy sandals. And so he did. And he saith unto him, Cast thy garment about thee, and follow me.

9 And he went out, and followed him; and wist not that it was true which was done by the angel; but thought he saw a vision.

10 When they were past the first and the second ward, they came unto the iron gate that leadeth unto the city; which opened to them of his own accord: and they went out, and passed on through one street; and forthwith the angel departed from him.

11 And when Peter was come to himself, he said, Now I know of a surety, that the Lord hath sent his angel, and hath delivered me out of the hand of Herod, and from all the expectation of the people of the Jews.

Now you can see. Not about Jesus but about Peter. Now, if you want to look further for that word, Easter in King James, the description as followed: In Strong's Concordance, it is G3957.

πάσχα

Transliteration: pascha. **Pronunciation:** pas'-khah. **Definition:** Of Chaldee origin (compare [H6453]); the Passover (the meal the day the festival or the special sacrifices connected with it): - Easter Passover.

It IS Passover, NOT Easter Sunday. They misinterpreted. From my understanding Easter Passover in Strong's is not Sunday because of the day of the week Christ was buried during Passover. Because of the Jewish calendar that the Sabbath Day is technically on Sabbath-Saturday as we now call it. Therefore the special Sabbath was on Saturday as in my opinion as if you read in the Bible and I will explain that in a moment. There is a chapter exclusively on Easter, and another for Christmas.

There are a lot of complications and will explain with much depth in this thesis of mine that those holidays are literally not Christians at all. Not even Jewish. But there IS Passover which IS one of MOST important holiday of all holidays and IT IS the most important of all because that is when Christ gave the most perfect love ever that He died for our sins according to John 3:16 and...

Romans 5:8 --

But God commendeth his love toward us, in that, while we were yet sinners, Christ died for us.

Hebrews 9:22 --

And almost all things are by the law purged with blood; and without shedding of blood is no remission.

Again, the word Easter applies as Passover, *NOT* Easter Sunday that we all know it. It is Passover, therefore, this is widely misinterpreted by Christians. This is to clarify Easter should be removed and instead be called, Resurrection Day, period. We will review that in the chapter about Easter in more detailed.

Today we see both holidays are merely as "religious" yet- festive of paganism celebrationism- a new term I coined means those celebrating in paganism and secularly method and not of godly. The definition is quite clear between those two when it comes to those holidays that God forbid. Not meaning to sound twisting verses but clearly we are in a time it is occurring.

Revelation 18:3 --

For all nations have drunk of the wine of the wrath of her fornication, and the kings of the earth have committed fornication with her, and the merchants of the earth are waxed rich through the abundance of her delicacies.

That Celebrationism. Or drunkenness-ism. The verse is quite clear that is happening globally ever since Paganism was around such as Nimrod because of his Tower of Baal or Babel. The Celebrationism was much older prior to the Great Flood as it said in the Bible.

Celebrationism is when people are drunk, literally drinking of alcohol but also drunk in celebrating holidays or birthdays or whatsoever. Drunk in King James in that verse clearly means literally and figurely. Strong's G4095.

In Greek: $\pi i \nu \omega \pi i \omega \pi \dot{\omega} \omega$. Transliteration: pinō piō poō. Pronunciation: pee'-no

pee'-o po'-o. **Definition:** The first is a prolonged form of the second which (together with the third form) occurs only as an alternate in certain tenses; to imbibe (literally or figuratively): - drink.

Now you can see in the definition of drunk is literally or figuratively. The word figuratively can means people are not themselves. Drunk with gifts, not just wines but gifts they received and they would cry and happy they got something. And have dinners with families and friends. Gifts are like alcoholic beverages. Easter is the same way with Easter eggs and candies. Halloween is another drunk holiday that people do drink and celebrate the dead by wearing Halloween costumes and outfits and go Trick and Treating door to door or person to person and Halloween has something in common with Easter and Christmas: they all have gifts. That is drunkenness with candies and gifts instead of just wines and liquor. New Year's Eve is the same. They drink to celebrate old year pass by and celebrate a New Year ring-in at midnight. Easter, Halloween, and Christmas all have a character or a few characters that belonged to them. Christmas has St. Nick or in United States, Santa Claus, Mrs. Claus and the reindeers and elves and Easter has Easter Bunny that has no person name, and for St. Nick has wrapped boxes as Easter has Halloween, ghosts and monsters. Chocolate candies as Halloween has candies of all kinds. Ho Ho Ho? I think not.

Celebrationism goes back prior the Great Flood.

History of Celebrationism.

Historical facts and Biblical facts about Celebrationism. It is all paganism. Let's focus on Biblical since we are focusing on Biblical aspects.

Let's start with Genesis 6 because it dates pre-flood era of the Old Testament.

Genesis 6 --

1 And it came to pass, when men began to multiply on the face of the earth, and daughters were born unto them,

2 That the sons of God saw the daughters of men that they were fair; and they took them wives of all which they chose.

3 And the Lord said, My spirit shall not always strive with man, for that he also is flesh: yet his days shall be an hundred and twenty years.

4 There were giants in the earth in those days; and also after that, when the sons of God came in unto the daughters of men, and they bare children to them, the same became mighty men which were of old, men of renown.

5 And God saw that the wickedness of man was great in the earth, and that every imagination of the thoughts of his heart was only evil continually.

6 And it repented the Lord that he had made man on the earth, and it grieved him at his heart.

Although historically, it goes back to the very second generation of humans- Cain who was inventive in wanting to use vegetables and fruits to sacrifice instead of doing correctly with the pure animal as God ordered Adam and Eve for all generations to come to do this so. This paganism is focus on making man to listen to Satan and make the wrong celebration by sacrifice. Therefore, as man spread and became more sinful by adding many kinds of celebrations.

God told Cain to stop by giving him guilty conscience.

Genesis 4:1 – 7 –

1 And Adam knew Eve his wife; and she conceived, and bare Cain, and said, I have gotten a man from the Lord.

2 And she again bare his brother Abel. And Abel was a keeper of sheep, but Cain was a tiller of the ground.

3 And in process of time it came to pass, that Cain brought of the fruit of the ground an offering unto the Lord.

4 And Abel, he also brought of the firstlings of his flock and of the fat thereof. And the Lord had respect unto Abel and to his offering:

5 But unto Cain and to his offering he had not respect. And Cain was very wroth, and his countenance fell.

6 And the Lord said unto Cain, Why art thou wroth? and why is thy countenance fallen?

7 If thou doest well, shalt thou not be accepted? and if thou doest not well, sin lieth at the door. And unto thee shall be his desire, and thou shalt rule over him.

This lead to the world's first murder. And oldest ever. Cain was upset and wanted to get rid of his brother.

It did not say if Cain had to resort to animal sacrifices but this began. Likely his generations up to the Great Flood during Noah's time, people followed his method. This is purely educational guess that Cain continued to do his methods.

Then that is where Genesis chapter 6 came in. It lead to much worse that the fallen angels have had fornicated with human females or even appeared and married women. Humans were much larger at the time. There were variation of heights because of the fallen angels giving human women babies and those babies were giants.

Never mind the science of this subject for this book but the point is that paganism were very much involved sexual phenomenon. They worshipped idols. This is where after the Great flood occurred. Just merely third generation it happened! Nimrod and the Tower of Baal (Babel). They wanted to make the tower to reach to Heaven as said in Genesis 11:4. It was a team effort that they were building. They wanted to reach to Heaven so they can celebrate that they defeated Heaven. Why? Nimrod was a hunter.

Genesis 11:1-9 --

1 And the whole earth was of one language, and of one speech.

2 And it came to pass, as they journeyed from the east, that they found a plain in the land of Shinar; and they dwelt there.

3 And they said one to another, Go to, let us make brick, and burn them thoroughly. And they had brick for stone, and slime had they for morter.

4 And they said, Go to, let us build us a city and a tower, whose top may reach unto heaven; and let us make us a name, lest we be scattered abroad upon the face of the whole earth.

5 And the Lord came down to see the city and the tower, which the children of men builded.

6 And the Lord said, Behold, the people is one, and they have all one language; and this they begin to do: and now nothing will be restrained from them, which they have imagined to do.

7 Go to, let us go down, and there confound their language, that they may not understand one another's speech.

8 So the Lord scattered them abroad from thence upon the face of all the earth: and they left off to build the city.

9 Therefore is the name of it called Babel; because the Lord did there confound the language of all the earth: and from thence did the Lordscatter them abroad upon the face of all the earth.

So, that celebration ended. Not even started. But Celebrationism increased globally because of the spread. You can see the Tower of Babel was supposed to be a pyramid but they never began because of what the verse said in verse 6. But other towers were

built. Remember this, the Tower in King James Bible Old Testament is translated from the Hebrew meaning a pyramid.

Strong's No.: H4026

מגדלה מגדל Hebrew:

Transliteration: migdâl migdâlâh. Pronunciation: {mig-dawl} mig-daw-law'.

Definition: From H1431; a tower (from its size or height); by analogy a rostrum; figuratively a (pyramidal) bed of flowers: - {castle} {flower} {pulpit} tower. Compare the names following.

Scholars and experts said this tower is a pyramid called, *ziqqurat* which is a step-style pyramid which pre-dates the Egyptian pyramids such as the Giza. It would be more akin to the Incans and Mayan pyramids that are found in Central America. The confusion of language and the Mayan pyramids have proven that the event has occurred as said in Genesis Chapter 11.

Because of this, paganism did not pass away, instead they carried on to different part of the world. Some formed different religions such as Stonehenge and several of cults and demonic religious practices of its day. They celebrate by drinking and partying and carried out pervert lifestyle worshipping idols and what's not.

For instance, they were worshipping their political leaders known as dictators. For instance, in the Bible and historical books, Caesars, Alexander the Great, Genesis Khan, Attila the Hut, popes, kings, queens, even for Native Americans, shamans, and rulers. Practically almost all nations since the Tower of Babel, they had lifelong rulers till coup da'tat or assassinations, or even natural causes those leaders during Biblical times and pre-Industrial Era, they were truly thought they were gods. Some of those are still in force today. Popes, dictators, totalitarian dictators, Muslim leaders. Yes, Muslim leaders because they believe in ethic cleaning by ridding of Christians, Jewish people, and anyone who is in the way against Muslims.

Dictatorship display their goddness themselves because of pride and power they contain. That enforced people to worship gods.

This demonstrate clearly at the time when Moses led the people out of Egypt after crossing the Red Sea and into the wilderness. People did not want to wait for God. So, they wanted to create one.

Exodus 32:1-10 --

1 And when the people saw that Moses delayed to come down out of the mount, the people gathered themselves together unto Aaron, and said unto him, Up, make us gods, which shall go before us; for as for this Moses, the man that brought us up out of the land of Egypt, we wot not what is become of him.

2 And Aaron said unto them, Break off the golden earrings, which are in the ears of your wives, of your sons, and of your daughters, and bring them unto me.

3 And all the people brake off the golden earrings which were in their ears, and brought them unto Aaron.

4 And he received them at their hand, and fashioned it with a graving tool, after he had made it a molten calf: and they said, These be thy gods, O Israel, which brought thee up out of the land of Egypt.

5 And when Aaron saw it, he built an altar before it; and Aaron made proclamation, and said, To morrow is a feast to the Lord.

6 And they rose up early on the morrow, and offered burnt offerings, and brought peace offerings; and the people sat down to eat and to drink, and rose up to play.

7 And the Lord said unto Moses, Go, get thee down; for thy people, which thou broughtest out of the land of Egypt, have corrupted themselves:

8 They have turned aside quickly out of the way which I commanded them: they have made them a molten calf, and have worshipped it, and have sacrificed thereunto, and said, These be thy gods, O Israel, which have brought thee up out of the land of Egypt.

9 And the Lord said unto Moses, I have seen this people, and, behold, it is a stiffnecked people:

10 Now therefore let me alone, that my wrath may wax hot against them, and that I may consume them: and I will make of thee a great nation.

That is paganism to worship the golden calf. Celebrationism. They celebrate something other than God. That is the whole meaning right in these verses.

Therefore, God would have destroyed them but God gave the Ten Commandments and that was the first start to establish Old Testament Jewish State with Moses leading then go from there.

Golden calf is to that time as Santa Claus and Easter Bunny and even ghosts are modern day Golden calves.

Because of sins the Jewish people faced, they were punished such as being negative about the Holy Land and they were suffered for 40 years in the wilderness because of that. Other times, they turned against God. They get punished because of their rebellion and instead, became celebrated with their idols.

This section is about Celebrationism history. Let's move on. After Christ, the Early Church really were in force and spreading fast that worried leaders and that was because of Satan influenced those people. Inquisition against the Early Church, then inquisitions during the Middle Ages from 500 AD on by both the Roman Catholic Church and the Muslims. Then there were Communists, Socialists, Totalitiarianists, Terrorists, and Dictators were all worshipping idols and were drunk in their sins against God. None

of those groups—the Communists, the Socialists, the Totalitiarianists, the Terrorists, and the Dictators—are Christians and they do rebel against God.

Globally it was Adolf Hitler in 1930's with much anger filled with hate that was fueled by himself by allowing Satan in him because of setbacks such as his favorite country, Germany lost World War One and because he was discriminated by Jewish college professors that he wanted to be a designer. Satan fueled that hate. Hitler became a god and people were drunk in Nazi-ism that they forgot God. World War Two was all about revenge for World War One but it was mainly because Hitler wanted to get rid of the Jewish people so that not an ounce of Jewish blood on Earth then Jesus would not return. That was the whole purpose Satan wanted.

Well, the people who celebrated Nazi-ism were drunk in it. In fact, today, fanatics are still practicing Nazi-ism. They worship Nazi and Hitler as gods. Cults do the same ever since the beginning with Cain. They still do today and people are so lost in it.

But during New Testament, cults and religious people had to cook up some ideas likely. It sounds conspiracy theory here but it is merely my opinion.

December 25th as known in modern days, Christmas. It was originally Sol Day which was a pagan holiday relating to Sol Invictus, an idol known as unconquered sun god. Sol is a pagan name for the Sun as we call that closest star to Earth. Of course, it provides life on earth and that can give us view during the day, nature gather sun rays, and warmth and so forth.

The holiday that was pagan goes back before Christ. Before Jesus was born, it goes back in the Old Testament. Ra which was an Egyptian sun god. The very same eyeseeing symbol. Ra was worshipped throughout most of the Egyptian history especially before Christ. Part of the Ancient Egyptian religion idol. This may have been very directly why God created the Ten Commandments that we are not to worship any images above or on or under the Earth as said in Exodus 20-

Exodus 20:1-5 --

1 And God spake all these words, saying,

2 I am the Lord thy God, which have brought thee out of the land of Egypt, out of the house of bondage.

3 Thou shalt have no other gods before me.

4 Thou shalt not make unto thee any graven image, or any likeness of any thing that is in heaven above, or that is in the earth beneath, or that is in the water under the earth.

5 Thou shalt not bow down thyself to them, nor serve them: for I the Lord thy God am a jealous God, visiting the iniquity of the fathers upon the children unto the third and fourth generation of them that hate me;

The verses clearly stated what the Ten Commandments started out with by saying that God brought the people out of Egypt and not to worship idols. Note in verse three saying no other gods and verse four. The word, "above" is mentioned and that is what mentioned that Ra was one of those created imaged by Egyptians. They worshipped our own star named Sol (Sun). Not quite incidentally that all of the planets and the Sun are named after mythology such as Venus, the fertile goddess, Mars, the god of war, Jupiter, etc. Only planet Earth is Earth, not a name after a god or goddess at all. Therefore, they did on purpose to name all the planets visible to naked eye in past few thousands of years after mythological gods including the star that shine bright for us to see in daytime and give us warmth.

Because of Ra that Egyptians worshipped. Likely the originated was from Babel where they were about to build the tower of babel but God confused languages. However, the general population of the time including Noah and his nuclear family of three sons and their wives were relocated because of the language separationism caused by God. Population spread around and they carried the thoughts of sun god idol throughout lands they claimed when they walked or rode to their destinations. The evidence was shown clearly with Mayans, Incans, and Aztecs when they relocated to such regions. Evidence showed at their ruins they worshipped sun gods.

In my two trips to see ruins such as Tikal in Guatemala and ruins in Cozumel in Mexico showed that their temples were facing where the sun rose and other temples facing where sun set. They worshipped sun god so that people can have warmth, sun for their plantations, and for energy such as to start fires, and to see well than darkness.

Stonehenge and related rounded stone structures have established for worship idols. They were built before Christ.

After Jesus Christ was born, and walked on Earth to do His mission to give His life for all, the gospel was spread fast as said in Acts chapter 2 and on with Peter, with Paul and with others. The Christianity was spreading and the Old Testament era of idol worshipping were winding down but the rise of other religions also appeared such as Islam in 500 AD. But also the Roman Catholic church did in 313 AD when Constantine the Roman Emperor ordered allowance of Christianity including his own, the Catholic Church.

Because of the Catholic Church according to observations, the Roman Catholic Church transformed Egyptian religion into Catholic such as IHS which does not mean Jesus but it is a symbolic name for three Egyptian gods. Isis, Hornus, and Seb- Sound familiar? Three godheads. But the Egyptian version for those three were mother, son, and god of earth. They wanted to replace Father, Son, and the Holy Ghost (1 John 5:7 and Matthew 28:19b).

However, the Bible did not state the date. Remember that the King James which was the final authorized English Bible which to help us to learn God's words that did not explain the date of Jesus Christ's birth. There is, however, if you read carefully in the Bible you will know with the guidance of the Holy Ghost when you pray and fast. This is how I have discovered when.

But at the time, the Catholic Church after receiving copies of the Bibles and they named it *Codex Vaticanus* which is quite different than the King James' original text- *Textus Receptus*. Both versions did not reveal the dates of Christ's birth. It was unnecessary

because the main mission of Christ was to die for us as Jesus said, "It is finished!" (John 19:30). Because of Christ died for us as said in John 3:16-17, that main mission was to die in place of lambs that the Jewish people were told to use during Passover when they were held captivity in Egypt as said in Exodus 12. The Jewish people had annual remembrance of why their sons were spared from death when the angel of death went by.

Jesus saved all the sons and later on, when it was God's time, Jesus died on the Cross for all of us. Jesus died on Passover week.

Today Christmas and Easter are celebrated commercially and forgotten. The thoughts of receving gifts from parents, relatives, grandparents for Christmas and the spirit of Christmas with the songs, the feasts at home, wearing funniest and oddest sweater and all. The snow. Christmas tree and as for Easter, the spring, the colorful eggs that woos the eyes and the candies. Halloween featured the same with candies. They all are lost.

They are all drunk with such holidays. Not to mention about Jesus. Churches today are celebrating the wrong way. They are worshipping for all the wrong reasons.

Revelation 18:3 -

For all nations have drunk of the wine of the wrath of her fornication, and the kings of the earth have committed fornication with her, and the merchants of the earth are waxed rich through the abundance of her delicacies.

Who the female is as said in Revelation 18? The Whore. What Whore? Whore of Revelation 17 and 18—if you read the scripture carefully, with many verses points out to a specific religion you all know well. It is quite clear what and where this religion is located so let's read the scriptures.

Revelation 17: 4-6, 18 --

4 And the woman was arrayed in purple and scarlet colour, and decked with gold and precious stones and pearls, having a golden cup in her hand full of abominations and filthiness of her fornication:

5 And upon her forehead was a name written, MYSTERY, BABYLON THE GREAT, THE MOTHER OF HARLOTS AND ABOMINATIONS OF THE EARTH.

6 And I saw the woman drunken with the blood of the saints, and with the blood of the martyrs of Jesus: and when I saw her, I wondered with great admiration.

9 And here is the mind which hath wisdom. The seven heads are seven mountains, on which the woman sitteth.

18 And the woman which thou sawest is that great city, which reigneth over the kings of the earth.

You need to remember that Jesus Christ is God, God is all mescaline. All-male God. No female is present as part of God. Now, the Whore is female. Female church, female instead of God. The woman wore purple and red. What religion has both colors? If you said it is the Vatican, you are correct.

Babylon religion began with Nimrod (Genesis 10:8-9) as said in verse 10 that he began all the cities including Babylon therefore, he created his own power by using as religion. As you understand that religion play huge role to put fear into people's hearts and mind as a psychological impact to make their own populations to submit to their demi-god ruler such as Nimrod and after the confusion of language, countries like Egypt had brought Babylonian religion. The clear archeological artifact as a fact was Nimrod's tower called obelisk. Babylon first had those. I strongly believe in my opinion the Tower of Babel was actually an obelisk because of the evidence of its existence, not a ziggurat pyramid that no one was not able to find. Although pyramids were quite common in

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Egypt until later, the Native Americans in Central America built their own ziggurat and standard or regular pyramids. Pyramids were also built in other countries around the world. South America, even in Europe, Southeast Asia, and among other regions. Different cults or religions are said to have similar formats.

So after the language confusion set by God, people brought with them the knowledge of Babylonian religion and made their own. Or for every new ruler who coup d'état taken over the previous administration, the new ruler established own religion to state they are better than others.

Rome established similar Babylonian but changed names. For instance, Isis and Horus were Egyptian gods. So was Osiris. It made way into the Roman Empire by 37 A.D., after the Cross which was 30 A.D. It became popular and main rival with Christianity movement spread by the Apostles after Jesus went to heaven. It is quite clear it goes back to Nimrod which began all Babylonian religions globally.

You see, Nimrod, Noah's great-grandson was a mighty hunter and established his kingdom as said in Genesis 10:8 and 9. However, he was slain by Cush's great uncle, Shem (Noah's Son) after Nimrod married his mother, Semiramis and impregnated her.

Genesis chapter 11 tells us that Nimrod wanted to build his government to be powerful. Nimrod's name means rebel. He refuse to submit to God's authority. This established secular humanism with tyrannical Authoritarian dictatorship that humans have attempted for thousands of years to be completely ruled over God. The evidence is shown clearly through Socialists, Communists, Islam, and dictatorship we see today.

Now, fast forward to after Christ.

Because of the spread of the Christianity with the Apostles and other Christians spreading the Gospel of Jesus Christ, the Roman governments feared that Christianity will hamper the authoritarian governments of Rome under Caesars and Emperors who were demi-gods that they were using Babylonian method with Nimrod's vision. Thousands of Christians, if not, millions of Christians and Jewish people were persecuted and murdered and others forced through Inquisitions. This is what the authoritarian religion does.

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Rome was forced to accept Christianity as a neutralizer to accompany with true Christians to trick true Christians to accept Catholicism. Other faiths did the same format. Mormons, Jehovah's Witnesses, etc. A middle-of-the-road if you will compare to political platform between the Left and the Right wings. The problem here with Rome, they had to adopt Christianity to lure true Christians rather than murder them since the more murders, the more people are being saved. So, their plan was to trick Christians to accept Catholicism. Other religions and cults are the same way to let God judge the people instead of satanic rulers having to do it themselves. How? If you are not saved by grace of God as said in Ephesians 2:7 and 8, then you are not saved. They are laughing behind your back and fooled you.

Now, you understand how false religions worked. Now let's focus on true meaning of those holidays.

During Colonialism of 1500's to 1700's. The Anabaptists such as the Puritans, Mennonites, Hutterites, Baptists, Shakers, and Quakers all were pretty much against Christmas. For a time in England, Oliver Cromwell banned it along with the Puritans after they overthrew King Charles I in 1649 during the England Civil War according to Wikipedia. Even in the Colonial America which was an official name prior to Colonial States and later, the United States of America, they banned Christmas because of the Puritans and other Anabaptists ruled most of the Northern half of the Colonial States. It all changed thanks to the Liberal Founding Fathers and other faiths relocated to America including standard British, Freemasons, Catholics, and mainline Protestants relocating in the era of birth of the United States of America and the Revolutionary War. At that time ever since Early Church, Christmas was ever banned. Only in Muslim countries Christmas may be banned in entirely if not, only found in Christian churches.

Chapter two: the origin and

MEANING OF CHRISTMAS.

Ho Ho Ho, you hear the laughter of Santa Claus. That is the modern interpretation of Christmas we know today. Where is Jesus Christ? Never was as many Christian churches totally mistook this as the day of Christ's birth. Sure, you see the Nativity Scene with the manger with the Star shining down leading where the three wise men meet the baby Jesus associated with Christmas. Sure, you see it is all desert surrounded and it was night and maybe for some scenes Christmas trees here or there.

Something is wrong here.

Here are more, Santa Claus? Oh you mean that fat jolly man or thin jolly man in Europe saying his favorite meme, "Ho Ho Ho" drinking milk and cookie. He would come through chimney to deliver your gifts and place them under the family Christmas tree. And not forgetting to stock up treaties in the Christmas stocking. Then he would go off on a red riding sled with all the reindeer with Rudolph shining his red nose up front.

Annually you see animated and live-action feature length movies and cartoons related to Christmas and television programs displaying Christmas. Almost not one program is missing Christmas.

Funny, as of more recent times, Atheists, Democrats, Socialists, Communists, and Muslims in the United States are fuming to get all Christmas to be removed from schools, public parks, the streets, and more. And forced stores not to say "Christmas Sales" and turn it to "holidays." Saying, "Happy Holidays!" in stores, schools, and in ads, "Holidays Sales" and Holiday Breaks for schools. This enforced Christians to upheld Christmases. And say, "Merry Christmas" instead and keep old fashioned names associated to Christmas.

I am a Christian but this is the only time I will agree with the Atheists, Democrats, Communists, Socialists, and Muslims that we are not supposed to say those things. Why?

Christmas IS demonic!

Yes, demonic because Christmas is on December 25th annually which was originally a sol birthday. Sol Invictus was established by Romans! Sol Invictus means "Unconquered Sun" which was the official sun god in the Roman Empire. It was on December 25, 274 A.D., about 234 years after Christ that Roman emperor Aurelian proclaimed the main cult among other gods in other cults! Sol Invictus was Romanized version of Ra, the Egyptian sun god! Wikipedia is the source.

Another source (<u>http://hope-of-israel.org/cmas1.htm</u>) said it was Roman Emperor Justinian ordered a holiday decree, "Dies Natali Invictus" for December 25, 324 AD and on as an annual holiday. The point was and still is those as a Roman holiday. The Vatican still recognize Christmas. The Roman Empire itself is the direct descendant of the Vatican. It is still the Roman Empire but they redressed themselves as the Vatican or the City of the Holy See as an official name recognized by United Nations.

As found in Werner Keller's book *The Bible as History* the following admission:

"December 25 is referred to in documents as Christmas Day in A.D. 324 for the first time. Under the Roman emperor Justinian [A.D. 527-565] it was recognized as an official holiday. An old Roman festival played a major part in the choice of this particular day. December 25 in ancient Rome was the *'Dies Natali Invictus*,' 'the birthday of the unconquered,' the day of the winter solstice and at the same time, in Rome, the last day of the Saturnalia, which had long since degenerated into a week of unbridled carnival..." (p. 331).

So, why the term, "Christmas"? The term, "Christmas" that breaks down into "Christ Mass". The Roman Catholic Church has church services called Mass. Christmas was pagan. The early Church in first 300 years in pre-Constantine Era were full-Gospel, Fully feared in their lives yet braved to spread the Gospel and be killed or captured and forced to convert back to paganism. Saul of Tarus was a well-known murderer killing the Jews and the Christians before Jesus blinded and asked Saul why persecuted Jesus Christ (Acts 9:4) and this truly touched Saul's heart (verse15) and he repented and went on to become one of the most famous missionaries of all time (many historical books and historical facts). He became Paul (Acts 13:9). Also known as Apostle (Acts 14:14) or Saint Paul according to some sects as they called him with different titles.

There is nothing regarding to Christmas during Biblical Times.

The Gospels

We will review all the Gospels regarding the Birth of Jesus Christ. Verse by verse. Understand that each book of the Gospel supports each other yet, each aimed for specific purpose. Matthew is for the Jewish people, Mark is for the Romans and leaders (Gentiles), as Dr. Luke is for the Greeks (Gentiles) as John is for all of us. John was not a Synoptic Gospel as the first three do since the first three have references to each other. Supportive to each other. But each Gospel has its own flair tailored for specific audience. Matthew was written for the Jewish people to follow similar to their Old Testament format. For instance, Matthew chapter 1 has a genealogy similar to many genealogy written in chapters throughout Old Testament or the Torah the Jewish people read.

Mark was written to tailor to the Romans. Rome was a powerful nation full of political leaders, business owners, and other leaders such as senators, nobles, etc. Money and power were the norm for the Upper Class of the Empire. Dr. Luke, who was a medical doctor understood Greek lifestyle and their freedom of mind in art, music, math, science, and their Liberal academic platform as means of life. Only John was written for all of us. From the poorest to the wealthiest, from around the corner to the farthest corner of the earth to hear about Jesus Christ. You can understand their language in all the Gospels today thanks to your education you have earned today.

Then we will review verses elsewhere in the Bible regarding Jesus Christ.

Matthew 1:18-25 and 2:1-12--

18 Now the birth of Jesus Christ was on this wise: When as his mother Mary was espoused to Joseph, before they came together, she was found with child of the Holy Ghost.

19 Then Joseph her husband, being a just man, and not willing to make her a public example, was minded to put her away privily.

20 But while he thought on these things, behold, the angel of the LORD appeared unto him in a dream, saying, Joseph, thou son of David, fear not to take unto thee Mary thy wife: for that which is conceived in her is of the Holy Ghost.

21 And she shall bring forth a son, and thou shalt call his name JESUS: for he shall save his people from their sins.

22 Now all this was done, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken of the Lord by the prophet, saying,

23 Behold, a virgin shall be with child, and shall bring forth a son, and they shall call his name Emmanuel, which being interpreted is, God with us.

24 Then Joseph being raised from sleep did as the angel of the Lord had bidden him, and took unto him his wife:

25 And knew her not till she had brought forth her firstborn son: and he called his name JESUS.

1 Now when Jesus was born in Bethlehem of Judaea in the days of Herod the king, behold, there came wise men from the east to Jerusalem,

2 Saying, Where is he that is born King of the Jews? for we have seen his star in the east, and are come to worship him.

3 When Herod the king had heard these things, he was troubled, and all Jerusalem with him.

4 And when he had gathered all the chief priests and scribes of the people together, he demanded of them where Christ should be born.

5 And they said unto him, In Bethlehem of Judaea: for thus it is written by the prophet,

6 And thou Bethlehem, in the land of Juda, art not the least among the princes of Juda: for out of thee shall come a Governor, that shall rule my people Israel.

7 Then Herod, when he had privily called the wise men, enquired of them diligently what time the star appeared.

8 And he sent them to Bethlehem, and said, Go and search diligently for the young child; and when ye have found him, bring me word again, that I may come and worship him also.

9 When they had heard the king, they departed; and, lo, the star, which they saw in the east, went before them, till it came and stood over where the young child was.

10 When they saw the star, they rejoiced with exceeding great joy.

11 And when they were come into the house, they saw the young child with Mary his mother, and fell down, and worshipped him: and when they had opened their treasures, they presented unto him gifts; gold, and frankincense and myrrh.

12 And being warned of God in a dream that they should not return to Herod, they departed into their own country another way.

Now, it is very broad statement regarding to Birth of Jesus Christ in the Gospel of Matthew since this is a synoptic Gospel aimed to the Jewish people. Note how the wise men came. They did not come to the manger. They came to the HOUSE (2:11) and they fell down (likely kneeing). Sure, many stories say there were three wise men. Wrong. It did not say how many wise men. Never. But true, many would point out to that verse about the gifts. It was about the gifts, NOT about the number of wise men. It is like when someone is having a birthday party at a restaurant. The cost is expensive to rent a dining room or hall. A group of family members and maybe former or current co-workers would pool in money to rent a hall to celebrate that someone's birthday party. How many restaurants did they rent if there were 100 people made plans to rent? 100 or the 1?

Another example. The happy engaged couple is getting married on July whatever this year, and how many people in that couple? Two? Ok, how many halls did they rent for the reception? One? Good. Does this help?

Three gifts from wise men. Now, if we follow the pattern of methods we use often since Biblical times, wise men also means a council, a board of directors, etc., in modern times. How many members usually a council, board of directors, board of advisors,

etc., usually have? A dozen. By U.S. Law, the Internal Revenue Services or known as the I.R.S. requires a non-profits (and likely for-profit businesses if they have stocks offering) to have a board of directors. The requirement is a dozen (12) members.

Now, the American Government is modelled after the Roman Empire structure of government. We have senators just the same as the Empire had senators. Right? Ok, they even had census during the birth of Christ (Luke 2:1-2). We will get to Dr. Luke's description of Christ shortly. But first, we are still on Matthew.

As you see the description of Jesus was born and the wise men came to the house. This places in a year and half span between birth and the visitation with the wise men at the house.

Now, in first chapter of Matthew, it described that Mary was pregnant as said in verse 23. The first chapter described in Joseph's perspective. Not that he viewed but the story had him as lead character in the story leading in about the main character: Jesus. The terminology of "lead character" and "main character" are flawed but based loosely in description of the scripture about Jesus Christ. Matthew was written for the Jewish people. Therefore the perspective is correct in having the linage described. Mary was the direct descendant of David. However, it was also direct masculine descendant for Joseph from King David and of course, Abraham if you will read from Matthew 1:1 – 16 therefore, the purpose of the Jewish kept the lineage is they knew the Messiah will be born from this lineage however, did not know who or where or when the Messiah will be born.

Therefore, verse 18 on described the role of Joseph and the birth of Christ. Nothing in there it says deeply about how Jesus came into the womb much. It did say something though in verse 18. "...of the Holy Ghost." Therefore, the Jewish people would have harder time understanding the miracle of the Only Begotten Son went in the womb. God knew what to say and what not to say...correctly without cause problems.

We understand it is God Himself that He send His Only Begotten Son (John 3:16) through the Holy Ghost as said in other Gospels.

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Chapter two of Matthew Jesus was named King of the Jews. Recognized by Herod by saying Jesus is the King of the Jews as said in verse two therefore, his role at the moment he send the wise men. Jesus was already born as said in verse 1 in second chapter. Meaning the wise men did not arrive at the manger where Jesus was born that night. It was not immediately. Jesus came then Herod heard about Jesus's birth likely because of the shepherds who were the ones where Jesus was born (Luke chapter 2).

Luke has it most colorful description regarding Jesus was born. Remember Dr. Luke wrote this for the Greeks. The entire New Testament was written in Greek. As many of you recalled in high school, Greek Mythology was taught in classes. The very purpose was similar. The Greeks were a thirst for new knowledge and seek for their redemptions. Like Apostle Paul preached about the Unknown God as said in Acts 17:23, he was preaching at Athens, the Capital of Greece, the capital of mythology, the false gods or idols. Therefore, God knew that Greeks desired for the Truth.

The Unknown God Paul preached and placed by naming that unknown, one true God as described in next few verses after the 23rd verse.

Now, Dr. Luke, being a medical professional understood Greek lifestyle and academic background, the third Gospel writer deeply explained clearly about Christ's birth.

Therefore, Doctor wrote that the shepherds were where Jesus was born.

Jesus was born in Bethlehem. The village in Judea as described by the Wise men as said in Matthew chapter 2, verse 5 and 6. They said it was the prophet spoke of it. It was Prophet Micah who spoke about Jesus Christ's birth.

You need to remember that prophets gave prophecies in somewhat cryptic yet clear description. In Micah 5:2 about Jesus was born in Bethlehem, it is cryptic.

Micah 5:2 –

But thou, Bethlehem Ephratah, though thou be little among the thousands of Judah, yet out of thee shall he come forth unto me that is

to be ruler in Israel; whose goings forth have been from of old, from everlasting.

Liberals are twisting to say it is a person name Bethlehem. It is an error because it really to describe Jesus's birthplace. It is like you want to know the upcoming anti-Christ's name and only you will get is triple 6. It is like Bible codes you want to find out if you will become the next President of the United States or whatever. It is not a Bible code. It is the Truth.

Micah wrote this several hundreds of years before Christ's birth nailed where Jesus would be born. The ruler in Israel is none other than Jesus Christ Himself. From everlasting means clearly Jesus is Alpha and Omega, the beginning and the end and Jesus is the Word as said in John 1:1.

So, it is not cryptic as matter of fact. Christians and Jewish people are not blind. Once saved, you will understand the Scripture and acknowledge them like Paul said in 1 Corinthians 15:1-8.

Gospel of Mark

Now the Gospel of Mark. Mark wrote this Gospel for the Romans. Leaders, Senators, Educated nobles, merchants, and related educated people who admire leadership and those in leaderships to read and understand the Gospel of Jesus Christ.

Mark did not speak of Jesus' birth but the Gospel started with John the Baptist and the introduction of Jesus Christ to the world by John by the River Jordan. The importance of the birth was not noted in the Gospel of Mark because the leadership of Christ in His Ministry began with the baptism and went forth from Baptism.

Gospel of Luke.

As for Dr. Luke, we find it is more descriptive than the first two writers of the Gospels in that order. Gospel of Luke is third and final Synoptic Gospel we find in the Holy Bible. Recall that the Gospel of John is not a Synoptic. Synoptic means "All-together." In

another word, the Synoptic Gospels are parallel to one another. For instance, as said about the Birth of Christ, John the Baptist and his preaching, the Leaper, and the Cross. Those are a few examples are analyzed when you read the scriptures yet, they are supportive in the perspective made for specific group of people.

As someone said to me, "All the words in the Bible has one same meaning but it is made for everyone to understand a certain scripture." For instance, maybe for most sinners, they will want to read John third chapter on about being Born-Again and salvation. Maybe others like Martin Luther who realized Acts 2:8-9 regarding Grace of God that God gave His Only Begotten Son to die in order for us to be saved. This is how Martin Luther got saved. Then there are the Roman Road to Salvation in the Bible for sinners to realize. Jesus' parables are another excellent samples of how to be saved. Only through Christ you can be saved. In conclusion, the Holy Bible said it all in Psalm 118:8 that we need to trust in God, period.

Now, with the Gospel of Luke, which is more in-depth. Being a doctor, doctors usually write lengthy thesis and publish their findings in medical journals. Colleges are the same way when you are a graduate writing a thesis or a dissertation. Usually over a hundred page of dissertation after spending a year in researching something.

Now, back to this, this is standard a thesis/dissertation akin to the Bible. Nearly all books are quite lengthy. Shortest book is just 219 words. That would be 3rd John. John wrote three part series in this set of three. Anyway, the point is that Luke has more to say.

Luke 1:8 - 80 and 2:1 - 40 -

5 There was in the days of Herod, the king of Judaea, a certain priest named Zacharias, of the course of Abia: and his wife was of the daughters of Aaron, and her name was Elisabeth.

6 And they were both righteous before God, walking in all the commandments and ordinances of the Lord blameless.

7 And they had no child, because that Elisabeth was barren, and they both were now well stricken in years.

8 And it came to pass, that while he executed the priest's office before God in the order of his course,

9 According to the custom of the priest's office, his lot was to burn incense when he went into the temple of the Lord.

10 And the whole multitude of the people were praying without at the time of incense.

11 And there appeared unto him an angel of the Lord standing on the right side of the altar of incense.

12 And when Zacharias saw him, he was troubled, and fear fell upon him.

13 But the angel said unto him, Fear not, Zacharias: for thy prayer is heard; and thy wife Elisabeth shall bear thee a son, and thou shalt call his name John.

14 And thou shalt have joy and gladness; and many shall rejoice at his birth.

15 For he shall be great in the sight of the Lord, and shall drink neither wine nor strong drink; and he shall be filled with the Holy Ghost, even from his mother's womb.

16 And many of the children of Israel shall he turn to the Lord their God.

17 And he shall go before him in the spirit and power of Elias, to turn the hearts of the fathers to the children, and the disobedient to the wisdom of the just; to make ready a people prepared for the Lord.

18 And Zacharias said unto the angel, Whereby shall I know this? for I am an old man, and my wife well stricken in years.

And the angel answering said unto him, I am Gabriel, that stand in the presence of God; and am sent to speak unto thee, and to shew thee these glad tidings.

And, behold, thou shalt be dumb, and not able to speak, until the day that these things shall be performed, because thou believest not my words, which shall be fulfilled in their season.

And the people waited for Zacharias, and marvelled that he tarried so long in the temple.

And when he came out, he could not speak unto them: and they perceived that he had seen a vision in the temple: for he beckoned unto them, and remained speechless.

And it came to pass, that, as soon as the days of his ministration were accomplished, he departed to his own house.

And after those days his wife Elisabeth conceived, and hid herself five months, saying,

Thus hath the Lord dealt with me in the days wherein he looked on me, to take away my reproach among men.

And in the sixth month the angel Gabriel was sent from God unto a city of Galilee, named Nazareth,

To a virgin espoused to a man whose name was Joseph, of the house of David; and the virgin's name was Mary.

And the angel came in unto her, and said, Hail, thou that art highly favoured, the Lord is with thee: blessed art thou among women.

And when she saw him, she was troubled at his saying, and cast in her mind what manner of salutation this should be.

30 And the angel said unto her, Fear not, Mary: for thou hast found favour with God.

31 And, behold, thou shalt conceive in thy womb, and bring forth a son, and shalt call his name Jesus.

32 He shall be great, and shall be called the Son of the Highest: and the Lord God shall give unto him the throne of his father David:

33 And he shall reign over the house of Jacob for ever; and of his kingdom there shall be no end.

34 Then said Mary unto the angel, How shall this be, seeing I know not a man?

35 And the angel answered and said unto her, The Holy Ghost shall come upon thee, and the power of the Highest shall overshadow thee: therefore also that holy thing which shall be born of thee shall be called the Son of God.

36 And, behold, thy cousin Elisabeth, she hath also conceived a son in her old age: and this is the sixth month with her, who was called barren.

37 For with God nothing shall be impossible.

38 And Mary said, Behold the handmaid of the Lord; be it unto me according to thy word. And the angel departed from her.

39 And Mary arose in those days, and went into the hill country with haste, into a city of Juda;

40 And entered into the house of Zacharias, and saluted Elisabeth.

41 And it came to pass, that, when Elisabeth heard the salutation of Mary, the babe leaped in her womb; and Elisabeth was filled with the Holy Ghost:

And she spake out with a loud voice, and said, Blessed art thou among women, and blessed is the fruit of thy womb.

43 And whence is this to me, that the mother of my Lord should come to me?

For, lo, as soon as the voice of thy salutation sounded in mine ears, the babe leaped in my womb for joy.

45 And blessed is she that believed: for there shall be a performance of those things which were told her from the Lord.

And Mary said, My soul doth magnify the Lord,

And my spirit hath rejoiced in God my Saviour.

For he hath regarded the low estate of his handmaiden: for, behold, from henceforth all generations shall call me blessed.

For he that is mighty hath done to me great things; and holy is his name.

And his mercy is on them that fear him from generation to generation.

He hath shewed strength with his arm; he hath scattered the proud in the imagination of their hearts.

He hath put down the mighty from their seats, and exalted them of low degree.

He hath filled the hungry with good things; and the rich he hath sent empty away.

54 He hath helped his servant Israel, in remembrance of his mercy;

55 As he spake to our fathers, to Abraham, and to his seed for ever.

And Mary abode with her about three months, and returned to her own house.

Now Elisabeth's full time came that she should be delivered; and she brought forth a son.

And her neighbours and her cousins heard how the Lord had shewed great mercy upon her; and they rejoiced with her.

And it came to pass, that on the eighth day they came to circumcise the child; and they called him Zacharias, after the name of his father.

60 And his mother answered and said, Not so; but he shall be called John.

And they said unto her, There is none of thy kindred that is called by this name.

62 And they made signs to his father, how he would have him called.

And he asked for a writing table, and wrote, saying, His name is John. And they marvelled all.

And his mouth was opened immediately, and his tongue loosed, and he spake, and praised God.

And fear came on all that dwelt round about them: and all these sayings were noised abroad throughout all the hill country of Judaea.

And all they that heard them laid them up in their hearts, saying, What manner of child shall this be! And the hand of the Lord was with him.

And his father Zacharias was filled with the Holy Ghost, and prophesied, saying,

Blessed be the Lord God of Israel; for he hath visited and redeemed his people,

And hath raised up an horn of salvation for us in the house of his servant David;

As he spake by the mouth of his holy prophets, which have been since the world began:

That we should be saved from our enemies, and from the hand of all that hate us;

72 To perform the mercy promised to our fathers, and to remember his holy covenant;

73 The oath which he sware to our father Abraham,

That he would grant unto us, that we being delivered out of the hand of our enemies might serve him without fear,

In holiness and righteousness before him, all the days of our life.

And thou, child, shalt be called the prophet of the Highest: for thou shalt go before the face of the Lord to prepare his ways;

To give knowledge of salvation unto his people by the remission of their sins,

Through the tender mercy of our God; whereby the dayspring from on high hath visited us,

To give light to them that sit in darkness and in the shadow of death, to guide our feet into the way of peace.

And the child grew, and waxed strong in spirit, and was in the deserts till the day of his shewing unto Israel.

Luke 2 –

1And it came to pass in those days, that there went out a decree from Caesar Augustus that all the world should be taxed.

2 (And this taxing was first made when Cyrenius was governor of Syria.)

3 And all went to be taxed, every one into his own city.

4 And Joseph also went up from Galilee, out of the city of Nazareth, into Judaea, unto the city of David, which is called Bethlehem; (because he was of the house and lineage of David:)

5 To be taxed with Mary his espoused wife, being great with child.

6 And so it was, that, while they were there, the days were accomplished that she should be delivered.

7 And she brought forth her firstborn son, and wrapped him in swaddling clothes, and laid him in a manger; because there was no room for them in the inn.

8 And there were in the same country shepherds abiding in the field, keeping watch over their flock by night.

9 And, lo, the angel of the Lord came upon them, and the glory of the Lord shone round about them: and they were sore afraid.

10 And the angel said unto them, Fear not: for, behold, I bring you good tidings of great joy, which shall be to all people.

11 For unto you is born this day in the city of David a Saviour, which is Christ the Lord.

12 And this shall be a sign unto you; Ye shall find the babe wrapped in swaddling clothes, lying in a manger.

And suddenly there was with the angel a multitude of the heavenly host praising God, and saying,

Glory to God in the highest, and on earth peace, good will toward men.

And it came to pass, as the angels were gone away from them into heaven, the shepherds said one to another, Let us now go even unto Bethlehem, and see this thing which is come to pass, which the Lord hath made known unto us.

16 And they came with haste, and found Mary, and Joseph, and the babe lying in a manger.

17 And when they had seen it, they made known abroad the saying which was told them concerning this child.

And all they that heard it wondered at those things which were told them by the shepherds.

But Mary kept all these things, and pondered them in her heart.

And the shepherds returned, glorifying and praising God for all the things that they had heard and seen, as it was told unto them.

And when eight days were accomplished for the circumcising of the child, his name was called Jesus, which was so named of the angel before he was conceived in the womb.

And when the days of her purification according to the law of Moses were accomplished, they brought him to Jerusalem, to present him to the Lord;

(As it is written in the law of the Lord, Every male that openeth the womb shall be called holy to the Lord;)

And to offer a sacrifice according to that which is said in the law of the Lord, A pair of turtledoves, or two young pigeons.

And, behold, there was a man in Jerusalem, whose name was Simeon; and the same man was just and devout, waiting for the consolation of Israel: and the Holy Ghost was upon him.

And it was revealed unto him by the Holy Ghost, that he should not see death, before he had seen the Lord's Christ.

And he came by the Spirit into the temple: and when the parents brought in the child Jesus, to do for him after the custom of the law,

28 Then took he him up in his arms, and blessed God, and said,

Lord, now lettest thou thy servant depart in peace, according to thy word:

For mine eyes have seen thy salvation,

31 Which thou hast prepared before the face of all people;

32 A light to lighten the Gentiles, and the glory of thy people Israel.

And Joseph and his mother marvelled at those things which were spoken of him.

And Simeon blessed them, and said unto Mary his mother, Behold, this child is set for the fall and rising again of many in Israel; and for a sign which shall be spoken against;

(Yea, a sword shall pierce through thy own soul also,) that the thoughts of many hearts may be revealed.

36 And there was one Anna, a prophetess, the daughter of Phanuel, of the tribe of Aser: she was of a great age, and had lived with an husband seven years from her virginity;

37 And she was a widow of about fourscore and four years, which departed not from the temple, but served God with fastings and prayers night and day.

38 And she coming in that instant gave thanks likewise unto the Lord, and spake of him to all them that looked for redemption in Jerusalem.

39 And when they had performed all things according to the law of the Lord, they returned into Galilee, to their own city Nazareth.

40 And the child grew, and waxed strong in spirit, filled with wisdom: and the grace of God was upon him.

Now we find that the story began before Mary was conceived. We find it began with John the Baptist. Not as adult baptizing but Elisabeth was conceived six months before Christ. It was all planned by God for a good reason. John the Baptist was the final prophet of the Old Testament to be born and died before Jesus died on the Cross. This tells us something. Yes, Dr. Luke even mentioned a period of time. Between John the Baptist and Jesus Christ by six months as evidence showed in verse 26 in the first chapter when Gabriel the Angel who appeared before Mary.

Six months may mean not much to you but mathematically, it means something. It means something Biblically and for God's glory and purpose.

We need to understand calendars first.

Calendar.

Calendars today are not the same as in the Biblical times but also modern calendar are not Judaism either. Modern calendar are based on Gregorian which was developed as most correct and being in use in October 1582. Developed to correct the Julian calendar by .002 percent by the development of Leap year. The problem with Julian which was enacted on 1 January 45 BC -- 45 years before Christ exhibit their dysfunctional of length of annual calendar. Since the mathematical equation of time for

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Earth to rotate around the sun is quite a bit off if you attempt to design clocks to precise the length of twenty-four hour time per day. The length is slightly longer than 24 hours by minutes. While math has displayed the length is not functionally as it is with standard clock, the length is increased by a quarter of day per year. That would be 8 hours per year added this, therefore, we have leap year to make up the distinctive time—February 29th. Scheduled to fall on years 2020, 2024, 2028, 2032, etc.

I am not sure how those two calendars were formed by those two leaders. I am sure they had their wise men do the math.

However, my method of math I proposed is using the long arm of the Big Dipper by viewing it at midnight every three months. It is found in the Northern Hemisphere. Since calendar and the clock both coincidence their number 12: 12 hours, 12 months. My understanding by observation for two years in row by watching at midnight where the Big Dipper handle points. For instance, on the first day of summer, the Big Dipper handle points directly south. Spring, the handle points east. Fall, it points West. However, in wintertime, since there is axis of the Earth is in different direction, and location around the sun opposition of where summer is, the handle points north.

North Star or known as Polaris remains intact. Same location. Sailors and marine professionals understood this and uses their sextants to locate their positions. Scouts and explorers knew that too.

My theory confirmed that the position remains the same annually for the Big Dipper pointing the South on the first day of summer which is most clear visual for me. Gregorian calendar is most accurate calendar—for now.

Since the New Testament was written in Greek, they understood time and space would be necessary be in Greek math, not Hebrew. Since this is confirmed calendar. John the Baptist was born six months prior to Jesus Christ. According to the Vatican, they places Jesus' birth on December 25th for the sake of the Roman Catholic Church. They would then place John the Baptist birth on June 25th.

Pregnancy.

Human pregnancy is nine month in length from conception to birth. Pregnancy is development of a child. Most animals function similar except for some others like birds, chicken, and some dinosaurs and reptiles, they use eggs.

There are three stages or professionally they call them three trimesters: Conceptual, Development, and Growth as I call them since I could not find the names of different trimesters. But in my opinion, it is called Conceptual, Development, and Growth. Why those three? First trimester is common sense that a new fetus was formed when a sperm is welcomed by the egg and is conceived. After this occurred, then become a baby. Then by the second trimester as many women would call it, "Golden period." It is the Development stage that the fetus become more formed from cells into human. Then the third trimester, it is the growth and finishing its development in the womb. Then by end of 40 weeks, the child is born.

The third trimester, the growth most babies do kick and make movements in the womb. Rarely do them in second trimester, or the Development stage. That stage is rare and can occur if there is ingrowth or illness or health problems. In one real case, at four months, a baby was choking by the umbilical cord wrapped around the neck and was already kicking rather than final two months of pregnancy. The baby died at birth.

Now we understand both calendar and pregnancy. Let's review about John and Jesus.

As you read that lengthy description of John and Jesus in the wombs, you will note the detailed description from the conception to birth. There are things you will need to understand that the Bible does not give full details of everything. For instance, it did not say the length or when did John the Baptist's father, Zacharias whose responsibility worked as a high priest (verse 8 and 9), the description did not say the length of the Jewish priest working in the Temple. You will need to go to outside source and research their roles and duties. First of all, let's review Biblically for their roles.

Hebrews 10:11 -

And every priest standeth daily ministering and offering oftentimes the same sacrifices, which can never take away sins:

That is the role of a priest especially during the Old Testament till the Veil was torn on the Day Jesus Christ died on the Cross.

Matthew 27:51 -

And, behold, the veil of the temple was rent in twain from the top to the bottom; and the earth did quake, and the rocks rent;

So, the role of the priest worked to sacrifice animals as offerings for people's need to forgive and forgiveness. Jesus ended that. Well, it was during the time when Gabriel visited the Priest, Zacharias was working as a priest. There were several priests working in the Temple, with the capital T which stands for the main temple in Jerusalem.

Zacharias's role was the Head Priest. Meaning he was only one allowed to enter to speak with God Himself alone behind the veil. There are other priests yes. But their turn has a limit of time. One priest for a period of time. Beyond that veil is the Holy of the Holiest. That is where God sits in the room. They take turns. There is 24 courses. That translate roughly 2 to 3 weeks per year.

1 Chronicles 28:11-13 -

11 Then David gave to Solomon his son the pattern of the porch, and of the houses thereof, and of the treasuries thereof, and of the upper chambers thereof, and of the inner parlours thereof, and of the place of the mercy seat,

12 And the pattern of all that he had by the spirit, of the courts of the house of the Lord, and of all the chambers round about, of the treasuries of the house of God, and of the treasuries of the dedicated things:

13 Also for the courses of the priests and the Levites, and for all the work of the service of the house of the Lord, and for all the vessels of service in the house of the Lord.

God instructed the roles of the priest. A priest must be from a tribe of Levites. There were other roles such as Gate Keepers, Musicians, etc. Priests always the highest followed by the Priest's Assistants. The numbers of priests are high especially at the time.

1 Chronicles 23:2-6 -

2 And he gathered together all the princes of Israel, with the priests and the Levites.

3 Now the Levites were numbered from the age of thirty years and upward: and their number by their polls, man by man, was thirty and eight thousand.

4 Of which, twenty and four thousand were to set forward the work of the house of the Lord; and six thousand were officers and judges:

5 Moreover four thousand were porters; and four thousand praised the Lord with the instruments which I made, said David, to praise therewith.

6 And David divided them into courses among the sons of Levi, namely, Gershon, Kohath, and Merari.

However, the course according to 1 Chronicles 28:13, it was divided to 24. In Jewish calendar, there were 51 weeks, not the standard Gregorian calendar we use today of 53 weeks (or 52 depends on how you look at it). It was almost exact 2 weeks for a course. However, that is not how it function.

1 Chronicles 9:25 –

And their brethren, which were in their villages, were to come after seven days from time to time with them.

This is when an assigned class of priests are together, they have seven days course. The words, "from time to time" means starts and ends on Sabbath day. In fact, they also work three more weeks. Therefore, it is a two year cycle of taking turns.

Here is more.

2 Chronicles 23:8 –

So the Levites and all Judah did according to all things that Jehoiada the priest had commanded, and took every man his men that were to come in on the sabbath, with them that were to go out on the sabbath: for Jehoiada the priest dismissed not the courses.

This explained about coming in on Sabbath and leave on next Sabbah.

Deuteronomy 16:16 -

Three times in a year shall all thy males appear before the Lord thy God in the place which he shall choose; in the feast of unleavened bread, and in the feast of weeks, and in the feast of tabernacles: and they shall not appear before the Lord empty:

They were required to appear before the Lord. Not one absent. Sure, got diarrhea, too bad, they have to attend. Bad cold? Too bad, need to show up.

Those three fests you should note. Feast of Unleavened Bread is the Passover. And Feast of the Tabernacles is exactly six months later. We will focus on those two very closely. They are quite important. Very important. And there are Feast of the Weeks.

Feast of Weeks is known as *Shavuot*. It is significant importance to the Jewish people that celebrate the first five books of the Torah, the escape from Egypt, and harvest. Feast of Weeks is usually on the 6th day of the Hebrew month, Sivan which fall between May 14 and June 15. Sound familiar? We are. So, those three Hebrew Holidays are quite important in the Temple for the priest and entire staff at the Temple. God ordered that because those three Holidays have to do with Jesus Christ. Many Jewish leaders do not understand that. Or did not realize those feasts have to do with Christ Himself. We understand that very clearly Jesus died on the Cross the week of the Passover and was buried during Passover. We will get there in another chapter about Easter. But The Weeks has a connection which dates very close to is the Pentecostalism! We will get there as well later. We are still discussing about Christ's birth.

Now, because of Zacharias and we need to do math if we want to say the Birth of Christ on correct date. If you still, as a Christian say Christ was born on December 25th, using our modern Gregorian calendar, we will discover math is off. We have 12 months in calendar. If you say Christ was born on December 25th, the conception would have been on or around March 25th. Now, if you want to measure that way using Zacharias's duty. Let's use those three holidays. Closest would have to be the Passover since March 25 is the conceptual date if you want to use Christmas as Christ's birth.

The Feast of Unleavened Bread/Passover scenario.

If you are going to measure that method, we need to make this very complicated and I will try to make it simple for you and other average readers with some math here. We need to use modern calendar to find when Passover was on at the time. And we will attempt using that math.

You must remember that the Passover first day falls on 15th day of Nisan. We are using the year 4 B.C. because of the proven records of death of Herod the Great who ordered a mass infanticide.

Matthew 2: 12 - 20 -

12 And being warned of God in a dream that they should not return to Herod, they departed into their own country another way.

13 And when they were departed, behold, the angel of the Lord appeareth to Joseph in a dream, saying, Arise, and take the young child and his mother, and flee into Egypt, and be thou there until I bring thee word: for Herod will seek the young child to destroy him.

14 When he arose, he took the young child and his mother by night, and departed into Egypt:

15 And was there until the death of Herod: that it might be fulfilled which was spoken of the Lord by the prophet, saying, Out of Egypt have I called my son.

16 Then Herod, when he saw that he was mocked of the wise men, was exceeding wroth, and sent forth, and slew all the children that were in Bethlehem, and in all the coasts thereof, from two years old and under, according to the time which he had diligently inquired of the wise men.

17 Then was fulfilled that which was spoken by Jeremiah the prophet, saying,

18 In Rama was there a voice heard, lamentation, and weeping, and great mourning, Rachel weeping for her children, and would not be comforted, because they are not.

19 But when Herod was dead, behold, an angel of the Lord appeareth in a dream to Joseph in Egypt,

20 Saying, Arise, and take the young child and his mother, and go into the land of Israel: for they are dead which sought the young child's life.

Herod was quite jealous and feared that Christ will execute Herod. Herod likely died of heart attack because it was so traumatized the fact Christ would become the King of the Jews. That is my humble opinion of why he died. Anyway, proven records places his death at 4 B.C. This demonstrate that likely Christ was born before 4 B.C. Likely 2 years prior that in 6 B.C. because of the age of Christ living in the house when the Wise men visited Christ. This shows that Christ was already a child living in the house according to Matthew 2:11.

Herod ordered mass infanticide for all babies in Bethlehem age 2 years or younger. Because of the time of the Wise men researched about the star and their caravan. Likely those Wise men had a group of workers who would take care of their camels, food supplies, water, cooking, and tents. Recall, it was hard to see the star during the day so likely the Wise men slept during the day and their staff took care of things. So, things took time and likely it took a year and half for the Wise men to arrive. Their travel may have taken just a few months actually and the secret of the Wise men and staff left after visiting Christ at his home. Likely those Wise men never returned back to Herod at all. Perhaps a messenger went back and told Herod many months later to tell him their resignation. We do not know but again, my opinion. But the mass infanticide was true according to the scripture. This places at 6 B.C. when Christ was born. Passover was on April 1st in Gregorian calendar. That was 5 days before Passover. Close you have to count six months from the day Gabriel spoke to Zacharias till Mary was conceived. Read Luke 1:26 for the length of time.

Luke 1:19 - 31 -

And the angel answering said unto him, I am Gabriel, that stand in the presence of God; and am sent to speak unto thee, and to shew thee these glad tidings.

And, behold, thou shalt be dumb, and not able to speak, until the day that these things shall be performed, because thou believest not my words, which shall be fulfilled in their season.

And the people waited for Zacharias, and marvelled that he tarried so long in the temple.

And when he came out, he could not speak unto them: and they perceived that he had seen a vision in the temple: for he beckoned unto them, and remained speechless.

And it came to pass, that, as soon as the days of his ministration were accomplished, he departed to his own house.

And after those days his wife Elisabeth conceived, and hid herself five months, saying,

25 Thus hath the Lord dealt with me in the days wherein he looked on me, to take away my reproach among men.

And in the sixth month the angel Gabriel was sent from God unto a city of Galilee, named Nazareth,

27 To a virgin espoused to a man whose name was Joseph, of the house of David; and the virgin's name was Mary.

28 And the angel came in unto her, and said, Hail, thou that art highly favoured, the Lord is with thee: blessed art thou among women.

29 And when she saw him, she was troubled at his saying, and cast in her mind what manner of salutation this should be.

30 And the angel said unto her, Fear not, Mary: for thou hast found favour with God.

31 And, behold, thou shalt conceive in thy womb, and bring forth a son, and shalt call his name Jesus.

So, if you want to say that 5 days before Passover then add six months, you would have Jesus born in June! Big mistake! He was not conceived because of that date and born on Christmas at all. None of that. So, cross out Passover.

Feast of the Weeks.

You want to attempt this as means toward Christ birth? It is possible. Since April 1st was Easter in 2018, you can figure that the Feast of Weeks was on May 26-27, 2018. That was 56 days.

The calendar is similar to 6 B.C. if you want to use that year which is similar to this year. Anyway, it was quite different calendar. Feast of Weeks was on 23rd of May 6 B.C. Then add 15 months (9 months of pregnancy for Elisabeth plus six which was overlapped with Mary being pregnant). That will end up with August 23rd. which was a month before Feast of Tabernacles.

However, you must re-read again as I did. Not a mistake here but to teach here. It was not immediately that Elisabeth was pregnant. Read Luke 1:23 and 24. From my understanding. I am not a female but heard from females all my life how they got pregnant. The females desiring to have babies, need to ovulate. At least two weeks

prior. You see, women do have periods monthly and have an egg released from the ovaries. This is ovulating. That is two weeks.

Now, if you add two more weeks for Elisabeth, likely you will get the Feast of Tabernacles the birth of Christ.

Feast of the Tabernacles.

See the last paragraph. If Elisabeth got pregnant during the Fest of the Tabernacles, you would have Mary give birth to Jesus Christ during Passover. That is another possibility but let's review more of the scriptures.

So, when did Jesus born?

We know he was born around 6 B.C. because of the death of Herod which was one of easiest math to figure out. However, the pinpoint of the date is bit more complicated. We will need to focus on the scriptures for clues which clearly state the obviously.

Luke 2:8-11 -

8 And there were in the same country shepherds abiding in the field, keeping watch over their flock by night.

9 And, lo, the angel of the Lord came upon them, and the glory of the Lord shone round about them: and they were sore afraid.

10 And the angel said unto them, Fear not: for, behold, I bring you good tidings of great joy, which shall be to all people.

11 For unto you is born this day in the city of David a Saviour, which is Christ the Lord.

That should give you the time of season. Since Israel is located in the Middle East, on the coastline of the Mediterranean Sea in the Fertile Crescent. Now, that shows the location. This means two seasons, not four like in the further northern hemisphere

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

would get. Usually wet and dry season. According to Israel Science and Technology website, it stated that Israel is in the 29-33 degrees north of the Equator. That means subtropical region which lies between tropical and temperate regions. There are two parts Israel lies in though. The northern and coastal part are hot and dry summers. The southern part and eastern part have arid climate. Raining season runs from October to Early May. This means two seasons-wet and dry. This is somewhat similar what the author of this book experienced in Central America with wet and dry season but quite opposite. Their wet season runs from April to December.

This means harvest season during wet season in Israel focusing in March to May depends on what crop. One must recall that the information I receive is of modern times. Biblically, the weather pattern may be different thanks to pollution, human destruction of natural forests, forest fires, volcano activitism, and unexpected weather disruptions.

However, the rain season do bring out sheep and animals to the field to be fed. This is why farmers even harvest hay, wheat, and/or corn for their livestock for late fall to early spring in Northern Hemisphere.

But because it says night in verse 8, this could mean daytime were hot. Sheep have thick wool coats as well as some animals have thick skin or coat on. This could mean between say, March and November. So, let's focus on the two main feasts-Tabernacles and Unleavened Bread (Passover).

Those two are very important as the author learned and realized because of the Blood Moons of 2015-2016. Twice it fell on Passover and twice it fell on Feast of Tabernacles. This, realizing the importance of the Tabernacles. As you understand the verse that the priests must be in the Temple for both feasts and Feast of the Weeks. Nothing it says about Christ's birthday. He was not even yet born till 6 B.C.! However, the importance of Christ's birth and His Death are equally important to know. Only the Passover is most important of all because Christ became the Lamb of God.

The blood moons showed importance and this, the author researched and already knew that Christ did not born on Christmas. Bible says nothing about December 25th.

God warned this!

Mark 7:7-8 -

7 Howbeit in vain do they worship me, teaching for doctrines the commandments of men.

8 For laying aside the commandment of God, ye hold the tradition of men, as the washing of pots and cups: and many other such like things ye do.

Mark 7:7 clearly stated that people worshipped Jesus Christ but in vain. They worship Christ in the wrong way! What Jesus was saying in verse 7 is that people worship according to the rules of their churches and their own doctrine. "Oh I am going to worship Jesus my way!" Or "I believe Christ is lesser God." Many false Christian sects and religions will say Jesus' name but not worship Him the way Christ want us to worship. Many became legalism, or follow leaders of their cults and yet, they used Jesus' name in vain. "Oh!!!! Worship Jesus but really, worship me! I am the Lord here in this church!" To that kind of context.

Verse, laying aside of the commandment of God- that would be likely in the Ten Commandments- to keep Sabbath Holy. Instead, people work. "Washing pots and pans" refers to you having to do the dishes on the Lord's day at home! God knew that thousands of years before you have Sunday off from work and you wash the dishes and take the trash out for trash night (I prefer my town change from Sunday night to Monday night because of Sunday labor!) or today, you have a job working at a department store or in the shipping warehouse on Sabbath day/Sunday today.

Exodus 20:8 - 11 -

8 Remember the sabbath day, to keep it holy.

9 Six days shalt thou labour, and do all thy work:

10 But the seventh day is the sabbath of the Lord thy God: in it thou shalt not do any work, thou, nor thy son, nor thy daughter, thy manservant, nor thy maidservant, nor thy cattle, nor thy stranger that is within thy gates:

11 For in six days the Lord made heaven and earth, the sea, and all that in them is, and rested the seventh day: wherefore the Lord blessed the sabbath day, and hallowed it.

So, do not work! AND go to church!

Christmas is mankind invention, period. This is why I do not celebrate Christmas and I do not like saying, "Merry Christmas." Period.

This is why I am writing this book for you to understand and please stop saying, "Merry Christmas" to me and other Christians and stop giving me gifts! Birthday is fine to congratulate that I get another milestone on my life.

But what about Jesus? It's the Feast of the Tabernacles.

Numbers of reasons: the role of the high priest Zacharias worked during the Feast of Weeks in late May 6 B.C., the birth of Jesus Christ, the shepherds worked the fields caring the sheep and likely other livestock as well in October.

Tabernacles is...**Sukkot** a Jewish holiday celebrating two reasons. "Feast of the ingatherings" at the year's end. That was first. Second of all and most important to note! Harvest season. End of harvest time and the agricultural year. In another word, like United States has their Thanksgiving in end of November.

Exodus 34:22 -

And thou shalt observe the feast of weeks, of the firstfruits of wheat harvest, and the feast of ingathering at the year's end.

Ah, so that is what Feast of the Tabernacles all about. Thanksgiving! Man cannot eat by bread alone. The point is that with the harvest, that is the gathering of the fruits, and food of course from refreshments to fruits and vegetables to bread to meats. There is one meat, the Lamb of God that God send the world (John 3:16) was Jesus Christ, the Word. Man cannot eat bread alone as said in Matthew 4:3 and 4. The Word is Jesus Christ as said in John 1:1.

Matthew 4:3 and 4 -

3 And when the tempter came to him, he said, If thou be the Son of God, command that these stones be made bread.

4 But he answered and said, It is written, Man shall not live by bread alone, but by every word that proceedeth out of the mouth of God.

Since Jesus is the Word. He is the Lamb of God as said in John 1:29. In bold what John said.

John 1:29 -

The next day John seeth Jesus coming unto him, and saith, Behold **the Lamb of God**, which taketh away the sin of the world.

So, as part of Thanksgiving, not only all the food were offered for the flesh for the Jewish people to celebrate during the Feast of the Tabernacles, God provided one meat for all of us of all ages- Jesus Christ. It makes logical sense and supportive of my

theory that Jesus was born during the week of the Feast of the Tabernacles or Sukkot. Because Jesus is the Lamb of God, He gave Himself on the Cross for all of us in order for us to be saved. This evidence is solid.

You see, Bethlehem was a village just five miles outside of Jerusalem. I am aware of the distance when I drive around my town. Bethlehem was a farming and breeding town for shepherds to collect wools for fabric and others for animal sacrifices in the Holy Temple in Jerusalem. The point there cross town makes logical sense for the Jewish people to go to Bethlehem to purchase lambs, sheep for sacrifices. Merchants would buy slaughtered livestock for food and for wool. There were no tractor trailers to deliver frozen meat to go cross country to supermarkets. None of those occurred. No refrigeration system available until twentieth century. Stantation were not available such as clean slaughterhouses, butcher shops, etc. Flies, maggots, etc. This is why sheep and lamb and other livestock including cattle, bulls, dinosaurs, large birds, even doves, etc. were breed in villages and suburb towns outside of the major cities like Jerusalem.

Because of the symbolic and factual that Jesus, the Lamb of God was born in Bethlehem and laid Jesus in a manger, likely a stone animal water trough was made into Jesus's crib. Researchers have discovered Bethlehem in more recent times of archeological finds that there were no manger that you pictured with that is out of wood. In those days, architecturally, builders built houses, sheds, buildings, and even roman baths and bathrooms all made with stones. They found houses with "ground level basements" because it was full of fossilized animal waste, hay, and other related animal supplies and farming equipment found in those basements. Therefore, back then, farmers and breeders and even shepherds have basements as sheds with mangers. There is a website that shows a trough made of stone in a photograph (Link: http://biblicalisraeltours.com/2014/12/the-manger/)

And another website shows a shed (basement) what it looked like. It is biblically and architecturally correct. (Link: <u>https://biblesnippets.com/inn-bethlehem/</u>) That photograph with actors in it performed correctly as well. That "stable" was actually the norm for a basement. People would live upstairs.

The word, "Inn" is not like the Holiday Inn you know right down the road from you. Sure, Inn today is a name for a motel or just a restaurant. None of that. Sure, the inn in the Biblical times were actually a motel as said in Luke 10:34.

Often people travelled by horse, camels, and even by foot and often people needed place to stay. Hotels are still in existence today because people still travel by cars, truck, etc. Anyway, the point is that there were no room in the inn in Bethlehem. Recall back then inn does not always mean hotel/motel. It means extra room. Kind of like a Bed and Breakfast Inn of today. Or rent a room for the night. Airbnb is a website that you can reserve a room. Well, back then, because of the census, they needed room to stay but many places were booked. They had to stay in the stable-the basement barn. They could not reserve through Airbnb at all. It was not in existence till 2010's.

The symbolic that Jesus was born and laid in the trough or manger shows He is the Lamb of God. Amen! The importance of His Birth is to lead toward to His Death on the Cross as the Lamb of God sacrificed for all of us! Amen!

Therefore, because God send His Only Begotten Son as the Lamb born and be like a Lamb—be with the animals because of the Thanksgiving the Jewish people had. Many did not realize. Mary, Joseph, the Shepherds, and the Wise men understood.

Course of Abia.

Now, about Zacharias's role as the priest in the Temple and his duty was to burn incense as stated in Luke 1:8-11. Zacharias and his wife Elisabeth came from this lineage of Aaron who was Moses's brother. The course of Abia or Abijah which means *"My Father is Yah."* Yah as in Yahweh- God's name. The course of Abia/Abijah is the eighth course of twenty-four courses. You need to understand as said in 1 Chronicles chapter 24—

1 Chronicles 24:1-19 -

1 Now these are the divisions of the sons of Aaron. The sons of Aaron; Nadab, and Abihu, Eleazar, and Ithamar. **2** But Nadab and Abihu died before their father, and had no children: therefore Eleazar and Ithamar executed the priest's office.

3 And David distributed them, both Zadok of the sons of Eleazar, and Ahimelech of the sons of Ithamar, according to their offices in their service.

4 And there were more chief men found of the sons of Eleazar than of the sons of Ithamar, and thus were they divided. Among the sons of Eleazar there were sixteen chief men of the house of their fathers, and eight among the sons of Ithamar according to the house of their fathers.

5 Thus were they divided by lot, one sort with another; for the governors of the sanctuary, and governors of the house of God, were of the sons of Eleazar, and of the sons of Ithamar.

6 And Shemaiah the son of Nethaneel the scribe, one of the Levites, wrote them before the king, and the princes, and Zadok the priest, and Ahimelech the son of Abiathar, and before the chief of the fathers of the priests and Levites: one principal household being taken for Eleazar, and one taken for Ithamar.

7 Now the first lot came forth to Jehoiarib, the second to Jedaiah,

- 8 The third to Harim, the fourth to Seorim,
- 9 The fifth to Malchijah, the sixth to Mijamin,
- 10 The seventh to Hakkoz, the eighth to Abijah,
- 11 The ninth to Jeshuah, the tenth to Shecaniah,
- 12 The eleventh to Eliashib, the twelfth to Jakim,
- 13 The thirteenth to Huppah, the fourteenth to Jeshebeab,
- 14 The fifteenth to Bilgah, the sixteenth to Immer,

15 The seventeenth to Hezir, the eighteenth to Aphses,

16 The nineteenth to Pethahiah, the twentieth to Jehezekel,

17 The one and twentieth to Jachin, the two and twentieth to Gamul,

18 The three and twentieth to Delaiah, the four and twentieth to Maaziah.

19 These were the orderings of them in their service to come into the house of the Lord, according to their manner, under Aaron their father, as the Lord God of Israel had commanded him.

As you can see the evidence of the name of the course in verse 10 that Zacharias's family belonged. That course according the Jewish calendar as we go back to that subject. The course began on March 20th, 6 B.C (Nisan 1, 3755). Then the role all priests and all staff at the Temple such as Musicians, Assistants, etc. They had to come for Passover according to the scripture as requirement (Deuteronomy 16:16). Now this means Zacharias stayed from March 20th to May 23rd, 6 B.C (Nisan 1, 3755).

It is possible that Gabriel appeared around the first of Sivah, the final week for Zacharias to spend his duty in the Temple. This means the Conception was likely by mid-June (June 17th, 6 B.C) (Tammuz 1, 3755). Remember I discussed the purpose of pregnancy and how it works with ovulation, this is the reason.

This brings to March for John the Baptist. Add six months, you have September for the birth of Jesus Christ!

According to a thesis by Mary Casale, "The Course of Abijah points to birth of Christ." © 2011 by Mary Casale, her hypothsis is correct.

As she pointed out and I will point out too. The dates are very important. With the Passover when Zacharias had to work in the Temple, the timing of his wife, Elisabeth's pregnancy and birth. John the Baptist was born on or around Nisan 1, 3756—March

9th, 5 B.C. But because of the six months, you have Mary being what Catholic called, "Immaculate Conception" and the date is quite close. The Catholic Church declared December 8th as Immaculate Conception. Close! It was December 12th because of the Jewish calendar you must follow. December 12, 6 B.C. in Roman calendar and the Jewish was Tebeth 1, 3756. Each year it changes. Passover each year is set on different date. Same with Tabernacles.

Speaking of Tabernacles, Jesus was born on/around September 16-23, the Feast of Tabernacles. Jesus may have in other theories (ie-Casale 2011) was born during the Feast of the Trumpets- September 2nd or the Day of the Atonement (September 11th). Tishri began September 2nd. Likely the Tabernacles is in my educated theory because I will point out.

Four Blood Moons.

The Four Blood Moons of 2014 and 2015 all fell on four important holidays. Passover two years in the row and twice on the Feast of the Tabernacles. Passover-Tabernacles Passover-Tabernacles in that order. It means something to the Jewish people and Christians during 2015 and 2016. God was trying to tell Christians who are blindly or drunk in the world or asleep about Jesus Christ and was trying to teach all of us Jesus is for real.

There was a reason for the Four Blood Moons. Of course there are signs of wonders.

However, it was not the Blessed Hope many were wondering as it said in Acts 2. Mark Blitz erred that Jesus would return after the Great Tribulation that began in 2008. And it was John Hagee capitalized the Four Blood Moons. The prophecy of Mark Blitz was in error greatly. He continue to make many errors and we must ignore false prophets that Jesus warned in Matthew 7:15, 24:11 and 24. Therefore, the prophecies are bunked.

However, the Four Blood Moons made a point that there IS a Feast of Tabernacles and the Moons did showed about birth and death of Christ on Earth.

The Lunar Eclipse of 2015 which occurred in between the four blood moons, on March 20th was to show the date of the start of Course of Abijah using modern calendar! But Nisan 1 began March 21st 2015!

The verses in Acts--

Acts 2:18-20 -

18 And on my servants and on my handmaidens I will pour out in those days of my Spirit; and they shall prophesy:

19 And I will shew wonders in heaven above, and signs in the earth beneath; blood, and fire, and vapour of smoke:

20 The sun shall be turned into darkness, and the moon into blood, before the great and notable day of the Lord come:

But the Four Blood Moons of 2014-15 were not the signs that Jesus would arrive. It was not the first time it occurred. Of course, everything is timed. God gave mankind 7000 years to be on Earth. From Creation to the Great Judgement Day. The clock stops after Death was finally judged and threw into Hell forever and the doors are sealed shut forever.

Four Blood Moons also occurred often as Mark Blitz and John Hagee made their errors. I knew it did not happen as I know the scriptures well that you need to study the word. Paul wrote that and be like the Bereans (Acts 17:11) by studying the scriptures! Those men did not.

Also Mark wrote this in Mark 7:7-8

Mark 7:7-8 -

7 Howbeit in vain do they worship me, teaching for doctrines the commandments of men.

8 For laying aside the commandment of God, ye hold the tradition of men, as the washing of pots and cups: and many other such like things ye do.

But I understood in a different perspective about Jesus Christ by observing the moons and I understood. Praise the Lord!

There you have it with a proof. Several proofs of when Jesus was born.

The Bethlehem Star.

It was very bright and shining and beautiful. Brighter than a planet that sits shining in our sky. When Herod heard of this, he asked the Wise men, his council the meaning of this and what was happening. They told Him about the Messiah born and they knew about Micah 5:2 where Jesus was born. They saw where in the sky. Likely the Wise men assembled a caravan. Not three Wise men as many thought. Likely a dozen of them. Plus their staff and crew. Cooks, animal caretakers, guides, tent staff, and guards. Likely an assembly of about 30 to 50 of them altogether. This is my educated guess and theory if you ask nomad families of today and they will say the same.

The Wise men who were very intelligent men who studied science, religion, math, and astronomy. They were chief priests and scribes as said in Matthew 2:4. They had astronomy tools and math tools as well. Likely they had those necessary tools to follow at night. They travelled by night but daytime, they slept while staff took care of everything else.

They followed the star. If you read the scriptures carefully in Matthew chapter 2, those Wise Men were chief priests and scribes! That is in verse 4 but if you read carefully about the Star, the closer they travelled to, the lower the star becomes. In another word, when you walked closer, it came down closer to earth. It was a guiding light for them to get closer to where Jesus lived. When they arrived, the Star was just above the house. It says so in verse 9.

76

Matthew 2:4 and 9 -

4 And when he had gathered **all the chief priests and scribes** of the people together, he demanded of them where Christ should be born.

9 When they had heard the king, **they departed**; and, lo, **the star**, which they saw **in the east**, went before them, **till it came and stood over where the young child was.**

Bold letters to emphasize the importance. That star was merely feet above Jesus Christ in the house! Literally the star itself went in the house and shining above Jesus Christ! It is an amazing miracle! Praise the Lord! The word, "…went before them…" meaning it disappeared. It means the star went down into the house. So, the Wise men had to dismount and knocked on the door and were welcomed in and bow before the Lord Jesus Christ and gave Him gifts. When they went in, they found that star again that was standing just above Jesus was.

This occurred about a year and half later. Likely it was around Passover when they finally visited Jesus, the child, not an infant in the manger. In the house!

The reason it was during Passover because of the importance that the public finally realize Jesus is Christ-the Lamb of God who will die 30 some years later on the Cross.

CHAPTER THREE: GOOD FRIDAY AND EASTER.

Today we use the term, "Easter" and sure, the Easter bunny, the colorful pastel colored eggs and the egg hunts and all. But where Jesus Christ? Easter was not Christian although the word, "Easter" was used once in the King James Bible. See the verse, Acts 12:4 and the word Easter in bold.

Acts 12:4 -

And when he had apprehended him, he put him in prison, and delivered him to four quaternions of soldiers to keep him; intending after **Easter** to bring him forth to the people.

Now, that confused us because it was written once and often the Bible use a different name, starting with Passover as an actual event in Egypt. Why Easter was mentioned

once? We need to understand what Easter was about at the time. Easter, according to Strong's Concordance (G3957), $\pi \dot{\alpha} \sigma \chi \alpha$ in Greek writing. It is *pascha*.

It is Chaldee origin meaning Passover - Easter Passover. Now, what you see does not make any sense for some Christians. Today, Easter falls on Sundays usually after Passover during that week.

However, the meaning of Easter today is not the same Easter in Acts 12:4. Of course Pascha comes from Hebrew word for Pesach which is none other than Passover. The words even closely assembled.

But still, Easter had pagan roots. Like Christmas had theirs, Easter had their own paganism. Vast resources of information are found on the internet.

First argument dissertation was made by the Venerable Bede (673-735). He was an English Monk, the father of modern English and English Christian History. He wrote 40 books. Anyway, he spoke about Easter. Why would the Bible have such word Easter? Thanks to the internet.

Easter goes back before Christ. This is more believable fact about Easter according to Bede the Venerable that Easter was pagan. You see, Christians from Northern Europe region adopted the name Easter in English. The Vatican does not officially name Easter at all. They use Pascha but English speaking lands, it is Easter.

You see, the Northern European Christians used Easter from a pagan named "Eastre", a goddess and "Eostre" in Northumbrian language. That pagan goddess was infamous Ashtoreth in Old Testament! The same for the poles were erected as sign of fertility. Not to be confused with Obelisk that symbolized Nimrod's genital being erected.

Ashtoreth is found in 1 Kings 11:5, 33; 2 Kings 23:13. Solomon worshipped her because he was old and his wives worshipped the idol.

The prophets condemned idolatry and altars set up for Ashtoreth as said in Isaiah 17:8, 27:9, Jeremiah 17:2, and Micah 5:14).

80

Other sources said about the pagan holiday was set Since Anglo-Saxons set spring equinox as "Eostre". A description for astronomy platform. Pagans worshipped their feasts usually for astronomy necessity. Christmas was also an astronomy holy day because it was considered as an equinox for winter. Therefore, because of spring, Ashtoreth was considered for the pagan worshippers.

We need to understand the word, East in our compass came from the word, "Aus/eas" meaning "to shine/East" -- To shine from the East. That is where we get those rooted words from proto-Indo-European root language. "Eastre", "Astarte" and "Eostre" came from "Aus/Eas". Interesting to note that Austria came from this same root word because of its European geographical location. Sources came from <u>http://taylormarshall.com/2013/04/was-easter-pagan-holiday-venerable-bede.html</u> and from information from the Venerable Bede.

Likely the Angelo-Saxons used the name Easter for a different reason. Since they knew that word would fit for the spring season, not because of the idol goddess, but for the month. This is exact quote from Venerable Bede's words clearly described what people did.

"Eostur-month, which is now interpreted as the paschal month, was formerly named after the goddess Eostre, and has given its name to the festival."

Like we use planets name and our star all mythical names. Mars named after Mars, the war god, Jupiter, Jupiter, etc. Friday for Freya the goddess, Sunday for Sun, sol (our star), etc. The concept was the same.

Now, let's get back to Acts 12:4 why the name, Easter was used. We need to go back before King James which was written in 1611, bibles used words more assembled to the Hebrew and Greek in both testaments in that order. However, because of King James ordered an English translation, they inserted what they knew best, Easter. Lord was another word King James inserted because in England and United Kingdom, they used their English words such as Lord. Say, "Lord Jones in the Parliament resigned

today because of sexual scandals and her Majesty accepted his resignation." That is how they speak in British language in England.

In the 1599 Geneva Bible, which is predecessor to King James by merely a dozen years, it was actual first English Bible. You will note in comparison of the same verse, Acts 12:4.

Acts 12: 4 (1599 Geneva Bible) -

And when he had caught him, he put him in prison, and delivered him to four quaternions of soldiers to be kept, intending after the **Passover** to bring him forth to the people.

But because Geneva was not in England, which means it was not in Angelo-Saxons territory. King James 1611 Authorized Version was true original King James. It displayed Easter instead in the Angelo-Saxons territory.

Therefore, it was not a mistake they put Easter in. It was written for people who understood when Easter was. Not a whole a lot knew when Passover because Passover was and still is a Jewish Holiday.

Ironically, 1599 Geneva mentioned Easter in Deuteronomy 16:1 but in King James, it mentioned quite different but has Passover.

So, therefore, it is Passover, not Easter. Easter was a substitute word for Passover for English speaking people when they translated. It should have said Passover, period.

So, throw out all of your Easter stuff. Same you throw out Christmas stuff. Say bye-bye to Ho-Ho-Ho and all. Say Hi to humility.

So, what is the name we need to replace Easter? Resurrection Day. OK, let's now read about the importance of Jesus Christ from Palm Sunday to the Resurrection and then we will discuss about Jesus's 40 days He walked upon Earth after the Resurrection then Jesus ascended to Heaven to be with the Father and the Holy Ghost.

Now, let's read the scriptures from all Gospels. It is more detailed than about Jesus's birth. Read Matthew, Mark, Luke, and John about the Jesus's Final 8 days leading to the Jesus risen from the Dead.

Quite long description from the Passover to his Death, burial, risen and departed to Heaven.

Now, we need to discuss about Palm Sunday, the beginning of the Passover week that lead to Jesus's risen from the dead. Palm Sunday was the Sunday prior the whole week. We need to focus on the timing. The Bible did tell us some of the timing. It did not say, Sunday, Monday, Tuesday, etc. but it did say selective period of time that are more important and we will fill the rest in educated perspective. Only John has most detailed of the timeline from Palm Sunday till the following Sunday.

Because it is the prophecy for Jesus to arrive on the donkey a triumphal entering Jerusalem, it was on Palm Sunday. The four canonical Gospels-Matthew, Mark, Luke, and John mentioned it. We will also need the scriptures of Old Testament that are prophetic regarding Jesus Christ arrival, the week, the Cross, death, burial and risen, and of course, ascend.

Zachariah 9:9 -

Rejoice greatly, O daughter of Zion; shout, O daughter of **Jerusalem: behold, thy King cometh unto thee**: he is just, and having salvation; lowly, and **riding upon an ass, and upon a colt the foal of an ass.**

Bold to focus on the scripture that matches to New Testament regarding Jesus riding on an ass (donkey). An ass means donkey in Old English.

To support Zachariah's scripture, you will need to focus on the date of the Passover as a pinpoint prior to Passover. One must read John 11:55. It began because of the people seen miracles especially regarding in the 11th Chapter of John that Jesus healed

83

Lazarus who passed away and was wrapped and buried in a cave. Jesus rose Lazarus and the people were shocked to see this. Many went to see religious leaders to tell about Jesus have done and this was the boiling point that they had enough of Jesus doing this. They felt they need to stop him. Then the verse 55 spoke when this happened. That was that day Lazarus was risen. Just the week before the Passover.

John 11:55 –

And the Jews' passover was nigh at hand: and many went out of the country up to Jerusalem before the passover, to purify themselves.

The Priests and the Pharisees knew Jesus would come to Jerusalem to celebrate Passover. Meaning Jesus would lead Passover with everyone. You need to understand those religious leaders were jealous, had hate, and were greedy. Meaning they would want people to give offerings to their temples. Not only that, they hated that Jesus is God Himself. They knew it was best chance to arrest Jesus was having Him in Jerusalem (verse 47 to 57).

John 12:1 clearly spoke of when Jesus raised Lazarus. It was merely six days prior to Passover. Now, let's focus on that as timeline.

John 12:1 –

1 Then Jesus six days before the passover came to Bethany, where Lazarus was, which had been dead, whom he raised from the dead.

Bold font to show most important description of when this happened. Now, if you say about the Palm Sunday which we will read about that in a moment. The Catholic Church declared "Good Friday" but you will need to focus on very important verse Jesus said it all how long Jesus would be dead. You need to recall that Jesus and God followed the Jewish calendar and even said in Genesis chapter 1 of how a day should work. A day began with night. This means around six p.m.-ish. That means sunset. Then about 12 hours of night then daylight at six a.m. then ends with 12 hours of daylights at 6 p.m. to start the new day.

We must look at Genesis chapter 1.

We need to educate ourselves with Biblical science. The Creation began with darkness. Genesis chapter 1 explained clearly each day for 7 days from Creation to the Day of Rest (7th day).

We need to focus on first few verses of the first day to clearly understand the most description of what night and day is and that was in correct order:

Genesis 1: 1 – 5 –

1 In the beginning God created the heaven and the earth.

2 And the earth was without form, and void; and **darkness was upon the face of the deep.** And the Spirit of God moved upon the face of the waters.

3 And God said, Let there be light: and there was light.

4 And God saw the light, that it was good: and God divided the light from the darkness.

5 And God called the light Day, and the darkness he called Night. And the evening and the morning were the first day.

Those verses clearly described not just the first day of creation, but God also created time. God created a period of time. The evening (darkness) was first then morning (light) because of verse 2 clearly stated periods of time. It was darkness first then light. This means lightness conquered darkness. So, which came first? Darkness and finally what? Light conquered darkness as said in verses 3 and 4.

Now, with that occurred, the Jewish people followed how night and day worked. From Sundown to sundown. Rome changed their calendar and they changed from sundown to midnight. Today, we followed the Julian period of time clock but using Gregorian calendar I explained in past chapter.

God repeated his role each day that nights began then daytimes. That was the total of six days of Creation and final day of the week, day of "rest".

Now, let's get back to the Jewish tradition of Passover. That Passover began on Monday evening. Since Jesus was born in 5 B.C. (Carter 2011), then you need to see his age of 33 years. Jesus began his ministry at 30 years of age as said in...

Luke 3:23 –

23 And **Jesus himself began to be about thirty years of age**, being (as was supposed) the son of Joseph, which was the son of Heli,

And his ministry was three and half years because of that Luke 3:23. Because Jesus was born on 5 B.C., the count of 30 years would be the year 25 A.D. (without 0 AD) then add three more years, you get 27 A.D. However, it is 33 and half years. It means 28 A.D. Now, we must translate that to the Jewish calendar. Passover is always Nisan 14th. And for the year 28 A.D., that translate to April 27-May 3, 28 A.D. The main Passover was on Tuesday for that year, 3788 – 3789. Many biblical scholars will say it was 30 A.D. or even later, using 33 A.D. The scholars back then used A.D. which translate in Latin, Anno Domini. It translated meaning, "In the Year of our Lord." They originally focused on his birth but math has improved and they erroneous the date of Christ's birth.

Therefore, because of the date, we know Passover was Tuesday. However, we must know Jesus was dead 3 nights and 3 days specifically described in the scripture the same way Jonah was. Read two verses. Jonah wrote what he experienced.

86

Jonah 1:17 –

Now the Lord had prepared a great fish to swallow up Jonah. And Jonah was in the belly of the fish three days and three nights.

And what Jesus experienced:

Matthew 12:40 -

For as Jonas was three days and three nights in the whale's belly; so shall the Son of man be three days and three nights in the heart of the earth.

Jesus came and was willing to die for us similar that Jonah did when he was running away from God and he offered himself to be thrown overboard to calm the panic sailors on this ship (Jonah 1:3-16). Both Biblical stories struck similar cord that both were given up their own lives to save others.

Because of three nights and three days, we must count as we should. Because of Passover, the Unleavened Bread that is quite what the Last Supper or the Lord's Supper in the Upper Room. Both are breads, correct? Yes. Jesus Christ was explaining.

Anyway, because of the three nights and three days, we must go backward. Counting from the first day of the week when the women discovered the stone was rolled back open and Jesus was not in the tomb as said in John 20:1 as well as in Matthew 28:1 and Mark 16:1 and 9. Also Luke 24:1. All four canonized Gospels spoke of first day of the week! That was Sunday! Now, we need to know the method of the Jewish calendar works regarding the time Jesus was in the heart of the earth. That quite self-explanatory of length of time. Because they needed to hurry to bury Jesus before the

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Sabbath-that is the Passover as said in John 19:31. Because of the special Sabbath, the bodies were ordered down. The count of the burial began before sundown that day. Now. Jesus was buried just before Sundown along with the rock to seal the tomb. They needed some sunlight to be able to see the rolling of the stone to close up the tomb before dark. When they did, it was already dusk. Now, the real count of three nights and three days began. Nights were most important start of new calendar day for the Jewish people. So if you say Good Friday was the answer, you are wrong. Friday night, and Saturday night are TWO nights. And ONE day-Saturday! So you have to throw out the Catholic Good Friday theory out of the window entirely! Because Jesus was buried just at dusk-sundown. The count began as next calendar day. And because of first day of the week, the women showed up and found Jesus was not there in very early morning. At Sunrise likely. Therefore, Jesus was risen at sundown before first day of the week. This translate as modern day Saturday evening at 6 p.m.-ish. So, you have to count backward with modern time period. Saturday and Friday night as one, Friday and Thursday night, and Thursday and Wednesday night. So, this bring to the subject that Jesus died on the Cross on Wednesday at 3 p.m. So, make that Good Wednesday. This is perhaps why many Christian churches have their services and Bible studies on modern Wednesday evening which notes that Jesus was buried on modern Wednesday evening.

Now, how can we compare to the calendar of 28 AD? We have a conflicting of two days period. We must look for the proper calendar year that Jesus died on Wednesday with Passover on Thursday. This leads to 27 AD that Nisan 14 (Passover Sacrifice) was on a Wednesday (modern) and Passover the following day-Thursday. This logic proves that Jesus died in 27 AD. That makes him born in 6 BC, not 5 BC if the assessment is correct without the 0 AD. However, a human is almost a year old when they are born. Did they count pregnancy as a year? All are possible. If that so, then his birth at 5 BC is correct then. Counting that, you are more likely to be correct that Jesus was 33 and ½ years of age at the Cross. 27 AD. The modern translation for Nisan 14 (Sacrifice) and 15 (Passover) would be Wednesday April 9th (Sacrifice) and Passover Thursday April 10th to 16th.

88

Because Jesus was the Lamb of God who sacrificed Himself for all of us on Good Wednesday, therefore, it is that day Jesus died. Buried just before Thursday (Jewish calendar), he was risen around 6 p.m. on Saturday evening (modern)/Sunday (Jewish).

So, Jesus died on the Cross exactly when God wanted Him to do so. Jesus is the Lamb of God. Let's check the historical foundation of Passover and why. Exodus 12 explained very colorful what God wanted us to do so. Even the verse said the Lord. Clearly Jesus Christ Himself said so in verse 1!

Exodus 12: 1-12 Description of the Lamb.

1 And the Lord spake unto Moses and Aaron in the land of Egypt saying,

2 This month shall be unto you the beginning of months: it shall be the first month of the year to you.

3 Speak ye unto all the congregation of Israel, saying, In the tenth day of this month they shall take to them every man a lamb, according to the house of their fathers, a lamb for an house:

4 And if the household be too little for the lamb, let him and his neighbour next unto his house take it according to the number of the souls; every man according to his eating shall make your count for the lamb.

5 Your lamb shall be without blemish, a male of the first year: ye shall take it out from the sheep, or from the goats:

6 And ye shall keep it up until the fourteenth day of the same month: and the whole assembly of the congregation of Israel shall kill it in the evening.

7 And they shall take of the blood, and strike it on the two side posts and on the upper door post of the houses, wherein they shall eat it.

8 And they shall eat the flesh in that night, roast with fire, and unleavened bread; and with bitter herbs they shall eat it.

9 Eat not of it raw, nor sodden at all with water, but roast with fire; his head with his legs, and with the purtenance thereof.

10 And ye shall let nothing of it remain until the morning; and that which remaineth of it until the morning ye shall burn with fire.

11 And thus shall ye eat it; with your loins girded, your shoes on your feet, and your staff in your hand; and ye shall eat it in haste: it is the Lord's passover.

In Verse 1, Jesus spoke of this in entire chapter of explaining how we handle with the Passover of Old Testament. Verse 3 mentioned a lamb. Jesus was explaining what animal and it has to be male and without blemish. This explains Jesus a male when he was send by God and without sins. Jesus had no sins! That was without blemish. All matched! Verse 5 explained that the lamb has to be a virgin. Clearly Jesus was not married. A Virgin.

In verse 6, it explained when this has to occur. That means Nisan 14. That is the Passover Sacrifice!

Jesus went on to explain how the first Passover should be done. Verse 6 explained that the lambs should be killed in the evening. This explains Jesus who is the Lamb of God died in the evening at 3 p.m.

Verse seven clearly explained how the blood should be used. They got the blood drained from the lambs and paint with blood on both sides of the door. In King James, side posts which is literally wooden door frame. And one on top of the door. What does that compared to? Jesus's nails on his hands and head on the wooden cross. So, basically, Jesus was showing the Jewish people in Egypt the coming of the main Passover—Jesus on the Cross!

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Everything matched. First born male to die and Jesus is Only Begotten Son of God. Second, The wooden door post and placement of the blood and Jesus on the Cross.

It is not done! The Jewish people were ordered to eat two main things: the roasted lamb. Not raw but cooked and what's left such as bones, fats, and for some, feeling full in their stomach, they were ordered to cast what's left into the fire pit. The other item to eat was unleavened bread. Both the lamb and the unleavened bread represented Jesus Christ! Jesus is the Lamb of God as said in John 1:29. In that verse, finally, Jesus was introduced to the world and the world to Jesus Christ and said, "Behold, the Lamb of God..." therefore, after all that time since the First Passover in Egypt during Moses's times, Jesus first introduced as Lamb of God and died as Lamb of God on the Cross.

So, the third match is that lambs were sacrificed during first Passover and Jesus as Lamb of God. The fourth match was unleavened bread. Why two-the lamb and the bread? Apparently Jesus told the Jewish people both items represents Jesus Christ of both Testaments. It is my opinion that the lamb was meant for Old Testament and the unleavened bread is meant for New Testament because of the Last Supper with Jesus in Upper Room. Jesus said, "Take this bread for this is my body..." Jesus wanted all of us to continue the Passover memory because Jesus died during Passover week for us and we must understand the meaning. Lambs are not needed anymore because Jesus finally died as the Lamb. The New Testament Passover is for all-including Jewish people and Christians alike to receive the bread to remember what Jesus did (Matthew 26:26, Mark 14:22, Luke 22:19, John 6:32-33, 35, 48, 50-51, and 58). Clearly Jesus explained why! Jesus is the Bread of Life.

The Jewish traditions ended with the Cross when the veil was torn meaning that God does not need to be in the upper room of the Temple anymore. Jesus send us the Holy Ghost stead of having a priest to enter the Upper Room to talk with God for us. Not need that anymore. Jesus became that monitor between us and the Father in Heaven. The veil means separation between Man and God. Salvation ended that. However, because Jesus said for the New Testaments starting with the Last Supper, he told the

91

Disciples in that Upper Room to do that. Here are proof Passover and the Unleavened Bread must be in remembrance annually.

Apostle Paul was saved some number of years after Jesus went to Heaven. Christians and Messanic Jewish people who accepted Jesus knew that the Jewish traditions ended and yet, kept Passover and Unleavened Bread because of the Last Supper and the Apostles Peter, John, etc. kept those two important holidays as ordered by Jesus.

Here in Acts 20, which was when Paul was already Born-Again. And the Disciples finally came together after their assigned duties to preach the Gospel of Jesus Christ everywhere.

Acts 20:5-7 -

5 These going before tarried for us at Troas.

6 And we sailed away from Philippi after the days of unleavened bread, and came unto them to Troas in five days; where we abode seven days.

7 And upon the **first day of the week, when the disciples came together to break bread**, Paul preached unto them, ready to depart on the morrow; and continued his speech until midnight.

You have to remember also who the disciples were. Not just the main eleven plus Paul. The Bible calls Believers in Jesus Christ, disciples. Such as in John 8:31, John 13:35, and John 15:8. We all are Disciples of Jesus Christ. Jesus mentioned all those words very clearly. If you do not accept the Cross, you are not Jesus's Disciple as said in Luke.

Luke 14:27 –

And whosoever doth not bear his cross, and come after me, cannot be **my disciple.**

So, back to the Passover and Unleavened Bread, the tradition continued for all Disciples. Paul even said we need to though.

1 Corinthians 11:26 –

For as often as ye eat this bread, and drink this cup, ye do shew the Lord's death till he come.

Paul wrote that in Corinthians. We must continue. So, we know that Passover and the Unleavened Bread must continue and they do. That is good. But the abusive of the bread such as once a month by some churches or even every Sunday is a no-no.

1 Corinthians 11:27 –

Wherefore whosoever shall eat this bread, and drink this cup of the Lord, unworthily, shall be guilty of the body and blood of the Lord.

And abusive too. They must follow the scriptures carefully and it is only for that week!

Now, we know the date of when Jesus died. "Good Wednesday." Now, we need to fill in between Sunday the day He arrived on an ass to Jerusalem. The Palm Sunday that Jesus arrived. More on this specifically. John has the most detailed about the Palm Sunday to the first day of the week that Jesus was already risen and went to Heaven from 12th chapter to 21st chapter. That amount to 10 chapters!

John 12:13 –

Took **branches of palm trees, and went forth to meet him**, and cried, Hosanna: Blessed is the King of Israel that cometh in the name of the Lord.

The time period between Sunday and Wednesday were fully four days. To break down, we will go further deeper.

Sunday, Jesus arrived in Jerusalem and went through the gates likely the same gates that the Muslims sealed up something like over 500 years after Jesus walked through for the last time and that location is now a cemetery. The Temple Mount is currently controlled by Jordanian Government.

Anyway, when Jesus walked in, he was shocked to see how the Temple Mount was being used as. It was a farmers' market! Fruits, vegetables, plants, and merchandises but most of all, livestock for people who wanted to buy them to use as sacrifices in the Temple.

Matthew 21:12 -

And Jesus went into the temple of God, and cast out all them that sold and bought in the temple, and overthrew the tables of the moneychangers, and the seats of them that sold doves,

Also…

John 2:13-15 –

13 And the Jews' passover was at hand, and Jesus went up to Jerusalem.

14 And found in the temple those that sold oxen and sheep and doves, and the changers of money sitting:

15 And when he had made a scourge of small cords, he drove them all out of the temple, and the sheep, and the oxen; and poured out the changers' money, and overthrew the tables;

The Temple Mount was converted to a farmers' market with those merchants selling livestock and each booth, they had tables just like you see at any trade shows and flea markets and farmers market. This is why churches are wrong to have church stores, flea markets, garage sales, auctions, thrift stores, and any fundraising events at all. Biblically wrong.

Jesus was upset and overthrew tables, threw their money pouches or whatever they had money in. Maybe they sure did have a small box where they keep their money in very similar to a flea/farmers' market vendor would have today.

Jesus strongly opposed any thing humans would neglect the Temple Mount. Funny, today in some cities, flea markets and farmers markets would be opened on Sundays! One is noted in Syracuse, NY opens during Sunday even during church services. Restaurants the same way. We are not to do anything except for worship the Lord on Sunday.

The Timeline Break Down.

Here is the timeline that Jesus Christ experienced between that Saturday before Palm Sunday and the Day Jesus Resurrected from the Dead.

Lazarus Risen from Dead.

It was Saturday that Lazarus was risen from the Dead. Many people saw this. This is perhaps where the possible legendary stories of "Mummy alive" may come from. Lazarus was totally wrapped that when Jesus called Lazarus alive and apparently Lazarus was unable to unwrap himself.

John 12:1 –

Then Jesus **six days before the passover** came to Bethany, where Lazarus was, which had been dead, whom he raised from the dead.

Saturday Evening-Supper.

Jesus had supper with Martha, Lazarus, and the Disciples, and likely visitors who came for the funeral and wake/calling hours. John 12:2-9. This clearly explained what was happening. The dinner, and the woman, Mary washed Jesus' feet with oil and Judas Iscariot who betrayed Jesus criticized the woman for what she was doing and Jesus made his point.

The Chief Priests wanted to kill Lazarus as well because they wanted to shut up Jesus for his most awesome miracle that Jesus did which was to raise the dead alive. (verses 10 and 11).

Saturday/Sabbath Day Mount of Olives-Saturday/Sabbath Day.

Prior entering Jerusalem, Jesus arrived near the Mount of Olives that day. Arriving near Bethphage to the Mount of Olives. Jesus asked for an ass to ride into Jerusalem. Definitely that Palm Sunday. They left Jericho Friday before where Lazarus was healed from the dead in Bethany (Matthew 20:29) a stop. On way to Bethphage (verses 30-34) when two blind men asked Jesus to heal them. Walking between Jericho and Jerusalem is just 19.8 miles. Likely this was on a Friday. That would amount to about 7 to 8 hours of walking. That is a day-long walk. Sunrise in April would be around 6-6:10 a.m. and sunset around 7-7:10 p.m. Time for nature call, wash-up face and hands and arms, breakfast, lunch...breaks, and more nature calls for every single person in the group with Jesus Christ. So, the hours of daylight was 13 hours. 5 hours they had to have time for wake-up, nature calls, etc.

But Bethany to Jerusalem was merely 2 miles. About forty minutes of walk/riding an ass to the Temple Mount. (Human average walking in rough terrain/trails is 3 miles per hour).

When Jesus healed the blind men at that town during that walk.

Jesus asked for the donkey and rode on it. Because of annual Palm Sunday especially Jesus had to fulfil the prophecy of riding an ass into Jerusalem as said in Zechariah 9:9 therefore asked for a donkey and a colt.

Palm Sunday AM: Triumphal Entry into Jerusalem.

The ride from Bethphage to Jerusalem was likely between minutes and an hour walking. It was practically a suburb if you will call that. After getting up again, prayer, wash-up, breakfast and of course, natural calls. Likely Jesus entered Jerusalem between 9 a.m. and 11 a.m. It was the biggest point of Jesus' life. It was called, Triumphal Entry into Jerusalem. Read Matthew 21:1; Luke 19:29 and 19:37 as well as 21:37 and 22:39.

Most detailed was explained in John 12:12 – 22.

Palm Sunday AM: Regional Market in Temple Mount.

So, those moneychangers were doing their regional market that morning in the Temple Mount. Jesus was furious and sabotage the market properly in His eyes after He saw how they were doing. That was around the time... Likely 11 a.m. Matthew 21:12 -13 and Mark 11:15. Also in John 2:13-15.

Because of what the money changes did, this is what Jesus said to them in Matthew 21:13.

Matthew 21:13 -

And said unto them, It is written, My house shall be called the house of prayer; but ye have made it a den of thieves.

Palm Sunday-Most of Day: Jesus healing people in Temple.

Immediately after that, for that day, the blind and the disabled came to Jesus for healing in the Temple. Jesus was healing them. Matthew 21:14-15.

That moment, the chief priests were displeased and not happy what Jesus was doing. Also Jesus spoke words.

Palm Sunday Evening-Jesus Left to Find Lodging.

After Jesus finished healing people all day. He left the Temple Mount to go to Bethany. It was in the same vicinity as Bethphage and the Mount of Olives. 15 furlongs distance which is practically a mile. This is likely where Jesus' home was rather than being in Jerusalem because of the peaceful village there. Jesus often stayed there as said in the Bible:

John 11:18 –

Now Bethany was nigh unto Jerusalem, about fifteen furlongs off:

In John 11th chapter, it was where Jesus's good friend, Lazarus was from as said in verse 17. So, next verse (John 11:18) said the distance. But right now, we are focusing the week when Jesus died. It is Sunday evening on Palm Sunday. Jesus returned back to Bethany.

Matthew 21:17 -

And he left them, and went out of the city into Bethany; and he lodged there.

Since Jesus was good friends with Lazarus, likely that is where Jesus lived during His Ministry because of the appropriate location near Jerusalem where Jesus Christ went in. Please keep in mind why the Mount of Olives-Bethphage-Bethany area is quite important. Read:

Zechariah 14:3-5 -

3 Then shall the Lord go forth, and fight against those nations, as when he fought in the day of battle.

4 And his feet shall stand in that day upon the mount of Olives, which is before Jerusalem on the east, and the mount of Olives shall cleave in the midst thereof toward the east and toward the west, and there shall be a very great valley; and half of the mountain shall remove toward the north, and half of it toward the south.

5 And ye shall flee to the valley of the mountains; for the valley of the mountains shall reach unto Azal: yea, ye shall flee, like as ye fled from before the earthquake in the days of Uzziah king of Judah: and the Lordmy God shall come, and all the saints with thee.

This is Biblical history but also this showed where and how the Lord will return to rule a thousand years. Christ will return or the Greek word, *Parousia* which means, "Arrival" or (Second) "Coming". Parousia was used 24 times in Greek translation but 17 times for Christ's second coming. (Strong's G3952).

The important thing is that is where Jesus will return in same manner as he did first time for the last time on the ass entering Jerusalem. He will return at the end of Tribulation to enter the rebuilt Temple to declare he defeated the Anti-Christ and to rule for 1000 years. It was not *Preterism.* Preterism means Jesus already risen from the Dead and already fulfilled during the Pentecost (Feast of Weeks). But Jesus will come back again in near future such as said in 2 Peter 3:10; Matthew 24:30). So, must remember this that no one can know when Jesus will return as said in...

Matthew 24:36 -

But of that day and hour knoweth no man, no, not the angels of heaven, but my Father only. Prophecies to come are very difficult to understand even for many Christians. But if you look at the life of Jesus Christ, all patterns for the future are based on those facts. For instance, Jonah and Noah both experienced similar pattern as Jesus went through. Jonah in belly of fish, Noah in the ark are similar to Christ in the heart of the earth and so forth.

This is why it was important for Jesus to go on a donkey to enter the city to fulfill the prophecy of the past and of the future when Jesus return in white robe on a white horse.

Monday Morning-Jesus returned to Jerusalem.

In Matthew 21:18, it explained that Jesus returned to the city and he was hungry. Apparently he did not have breakfast at home. Perhaps was planning on eating out? Next verse explained he saw a fig tree without fruits and he cursed it. The tree died instantly.

Jesus returned same path as he did with the donkey. So, he was back to the Temple Mount. Likely this was by 8 a.m. Jesus went to teach. Likely it was Bible school? Bible college? Or a Jewish school? Whatever it was, He was there teaching as said in Matthew 21:23. The rest of the chapter Jesus answered the Chief Priests and Elders questions. Likely it was already into the hour. Those religious leaders really wanted to get onto Jesus but feared because of the crowd were marveled since they saw that Jesus was a prophet. He was the most awesome teacher, Lord, Savior, Prophet, and Son of God. Jesus spoke of another parable. Perhaps already an hour after his arrival.

Jesus were answering many questions people had. Then Jesus spoke up furiously against hypocrites and even people for their sinful ways of life and for what they are about to do to Jesus Christ (Matthew chapters 22 and 23).

Noonish - Jesus Departed from the Temple.

It was perhaps by noon that Jesus left the Temple. Likely already emotional because of the ways of the wicked. Jesus' disciples followed Jesus outside of the Temple but remained on Temple Mount. The grounds where the Temple was. The Disciples showed Jesus the building then Jesus told them that marvel wonder of the world of that Temple will fall. It was a prophetic because the Temple Mount was destroyed by Rome in 70 A.D. during the Great Jewish Revolt. But the real main point Jesus was talking about the Temple itself, not the Temple Mount. The Temple was really about Jesus Christ Himself.

Well, seven times in the Bible it explained three days Christ will rebuilt the Temple.

One instance-

Matthew 26:60-62 -

60 But found none: yea, though many false witnesses came, yet found they none. At the last came two false witnesses,

61 And said, This fellow [Jesus Christ] said, I am able to destroy the temple of God, and to build it in three days.

62 And the high priest arose, and said unto him, Answerest thou nothing? what is it which these witness against thee?

Therefore, that is what Jesus was explaining about the Temple Mount.

About 12:30 PM- Jesus returns to Mount of Olives.

Matthew 24:2 Jesus returned to Mount of Olives and his main Disciples. The Dozen Disciples secretly asked Jesus what he was talking about. Jesus spoke about the coming of what mankind will face. Such as the Great Tribulation, the quakes, the wars, and rumor of wars (media), and more. Then went on to talk about the ten virgins. Again, that would have been about an hour to hour and half.

(Matthew 24 and 25).

Jesus may have skipped lunch.

Then Jesus spoke about that week what will happen. That happening was about Jesus would be betrayed and crucified on the Cross. That was the very start of everything unfolded (Matthew 26:2).

Matthew 26:2 -

Ye know that after two days is the feast of the passover, and the Son of man is betrayed to be crucified.

Since this was on Monday, the next day after Palm Sunday. Two days he was talking about was Wednesday! From Monday to Wednesday is two days. That is your other proof that it is Wednesday, not Good Friday. Read the verse again!

1 – 2 PM Monday Afternoon Meeting with High Priest.

As Jesus left for the Mount of Olives, the Chief Priests and the Scribes and Elders had a meeting. Likely it was an emergency meeting that all of them were called together. This occurred around early afternoon at the palace of the high priest, Caiaphas. Likely he called for the meeting. They may have met in one hour because there were no telephones, no texting, no telegraphs, nothing. Only messengers and they called for page boys if they had them and told all the priests, scribes, and elders together. They may have met by 1 p.m. – an hour later. Matthew 26:3 – 5 clearly explained the meeting.

Passover Sacrifice- First Day of Feast of Unleavened Bread-Tuesday.

This was the beginning of the Passover week according to the scriptures that God told the Jewish required for the Passover in Egypt at the time as said in Exodus chapter 12 of how it should be done. This means Nisan 14 annually the Passover Sacrifice as part of the Feast of Unleavened Bread. Exodus 12:8.

Look in Matthew 26:14 on as well as John chapter 13 on.

Late Monday Afternoon-Satan Entered Judas Iscariot.

You will find in Matthew 26:14-16 and John 13:1-2 that Judas allowed Satan to enter Judas Iscariot who betrayed Jesus by being possessed. He went to the high priests to make a deal for 30 pieces of silver. Judas went back with the group. Also Luke 22:3.

Monday Evening, 7 p.m.-ish. The Lord's Supper. (Feast of Unleavened Bread)

Then Jesus went to wash the Disciples' feet. But not all washed. Because of the Feast of the Unleavened Bread began that Monday evening (Jewish Tuesday night). It was time for the Lord's Supper. It was traditional for the Jewish to have a feast of Unleavened Bread. So, as it said in Luke 22:7 – 20. This was very clear description of the Lord's Supper. Technically it was Feast of the Unleavened Bread. This is the last time Jesus will eat with His Disciples. He knew because of Judas is about to betrayed. Remember Jesus is God who can know and read our hearts and He sure did read inside Judas and sense Satan went in Judas Iscariot. Jesus spoke out loud. Judas heard that very clearly. The other Disciples could not figure out who was the betrayer because of the limits of the Power of God. God did not reveal because Jesus must allow this to happen.

Luke 22:21-23. And..

Leviticus 23:5-8 -

5 In the fourteenth day of the first month at even is the Lord's passover.

6 And on the fifteenth day of the same month is the feast of unleavened bread unto the Lord: seven days ye must eat unleavened bread.

7 In the first day ye shall have an holy convocation: ye shall do no servile work therein.

8 But ye shall offer an offering made by fire unto the Lord seven days: in the seventh day is an holy convocation: ye shall do no servile work therein.

You need to understand that the Passover Sacrifice has to be the same day Jesus died on the Cross because Jesus is the Lamb. Has to be Wednesday. Because of Feast of Unleavened Bread has to happen after the Passover Sacrifice. Therefore, with Jesus being arrested that Monday evening which means Tuesday already in Jewish calendar. According to the Calendar of 27 AD, it was Wednesday. His burial has to start on modern Wednesday evening (Jewish Thursday night). I repeated to make it clear the count.

Peter who usually jump to conclusions before he should think. He speaks before he thinks. So, He said he would be with Jesus but Jesus told Peter he will deny Jesus three time before the Rooster crows at sunrise. It is a fact roosters do crow at sunrise. I personally heard that early mornings when I went on mission trips to Central America that I had my hearing aids on and getting ready for church or go on next town or be in town doing God's work from 5 a.m. on. Many homeowners in Central America owns chickens and roosters.

About 9 p.m. Monday Night (Jewish Tuesday Night) – Peter Gasped.

Peter gasped that he will deny Christ. John 13:26 -38. Also Luke 22:31 – 34. Also Matthew 26:33 – 34 and Mark 14:30.

About 9:45 p.m., Monday Night, Jesus Prayed at the Garden.

A clear description in John 18 explained about Jesus went to the Garden of Gethsemane (verse 1) and said in Luke 22:39 because this is Jesus's favorite place for both Jesus and His Disciples to enter to pray or to convent together (verse 2). First Jesus went to the Mount of Olives and then Jesus entered the Garden which was a stone throw distance (Luke 22:39). Also read John 1:1. Practically next to the Mount of

Olives. Kind of like two parks in one. It is not uncommon even modern times they do this.

It was already dark out. Remember, no flashlights! Dry living, akin to dry camping modern people go for. Some of you remember as Boy Scouts and maybe others as Girl Scouts.

Likely torches. So, it was limited light. Now, let's read on about what is about to happen at the Garden.

Likely 12:45 A.M. (Modern Tuesday)-Judas Lead Group to Arrest Jesus.

It was clearly Jesus went to pray and came back each hour and he found his Disciples asleep. After the third trip down and found asleep, he went back to pray but came back for final time and really woke them up because of Judas was coming. So, the time was likely 12:45 to 1 a.m. That was quite in middle of the night. Because of Judas, the soldiers, the high priests, etc. came to take Jesus away from us, then in the future Jesus will return in the middle of the night which is more plausible since they took Him away and then Jesus will return where he was left off. And for being in the Tomb and awaken likely overnight.

The verses clearly explained the timeline Jesus was at the garden praying. When you read, it would be more logical sense it was likely each hour Jesus checked on them. Also found in Luke 22:39 – 46.

Matthew 26:36-47 -

36 Then cometh Jesus with them unto a place called Gethsemane, and saith unto the disciples, Sit ye here, while I go and pray yonder.

37 And he took with him Peter and the two sons of Zebedee, and began to be sorrowful and very heavy.

38 Then saith he unto them, My soul is exceeding sorrowful, even unto death: tarry ye here, and watch with me.

39 And he went a little farther, and fell on his face, and prayed, saying, O my Father, if it be possible, let this cup pass from me: nevertheless not as I will, but as thou wilt.

40 And he cometh unto the disciples, and findeth them asleep, and saith unto Peter, What, could ye not watch with me **one hour?**

41 Watch and pray, that ye enter not into temptation: the spirit indeed is willing, but the flesh is weak.

42 He went away again the **second time**, and prayed, saying, O my Father, if this cup may not pass away from me, except I drink it, thy will be done.

43 And he came and found them asleep again: for their eyes were heavy.

44 And he left them, and went away again, and prayed the **third time**, saying the same words.

45 Then cometh he to his disciples, and saith unto them, Sleep on now, and take your rest: behold, **the hour is at hand**, and the Son of man is betrayed into the hands of sinners.

So we found that it was around 1 in the morning when Jesus was arrested. It will be sunrise in few short hours. Sunrise would be about ten minutes passed 5 in the morning. More on that shortly.

1 A.M., Tuesday – The Arrest.

This is the time Jesus was arrested as an educated guess and opinion. Jesus was taken away after the confrontation with Judas and all of the people involved arresting

Jesus Christ. The kiss was a sign to show the soldiers to arrest Jesus. The high priests knew who Jesus look like. It was a code instead. And remember, this is night time, no sunlight. Just torches. It would be a little bit harder to see people. The kiss helped the soldiers to see that for themselves. Also found in John 18:2 - 12.

Matthew 26:47 - 57 -

And while he yet spake, lo, Judas, one of the twelve, came, and with him a great multitude with swords and staves, from the chief priests and elders of the people.

Now he that betrayed him gave them a sign, saying, Whomsoever I shall kiss, that same is he: hold him fast.

And forthwith he came to Jesus, and said, Hail, master; and kissed him.

And Jesus said unto him, Friend, wherefore art thou come? Then came they, and laid hands on Jesus and took him.

And, behold, one of them which were with Jesus stretched out his hand, and drew his sword, and struck a servant of the high priest's, and smote off his ear.

Then said Jesus unto him, Put up again thy sword into his place: for all they that take the sword shall perish with the sword.

Thinkest thou that I cannot now pray to my Father, and he shall presently give me more than twelve legions of angels?

But how then shall the scriptures be fulfilled, that thus it must be?

In that same hour said Jesus to the multitudes, Are ye come out as against a thief with swords and staves for to take me? I sat daily with you teaching in the temple, and ye laid no hold on me.

56 But all this was done, that the scriptures of the prophets might be fulfilled. Then all the disciples forsook him, and fled.

57 And they that had laid hold on Jesus led him away to Caiaphas the high priest, where the scribes and the elders were assembled.

In John it was very detailed as well. It was twice Jesus asked the crowd Judas brought (John 18:4 – 8). Apparently maybe they did not completely knew what Jesus look like. Remember, no police car lights, no flashlights, and no wanted posters. None of those exist till many centuries later.

Around 2 A.M., Tuesday – Jesus was taken to Sanhedrin.

Jesus was taken to the high Jewish court called, Sanhedrin. It was their religious version of the Supreme Court of the United States as in comparison. The Sanhedrin had a council of 23 or 71 chief priests, elders, etc. They convene together as "court judges" and the leading priest of all was Caiaphas, the high priest (Matthew 26:57) Also Annas as said in John 18:13. He was father-in-law to Caiaphas. Likely both of those men were in same house. And they called others (either 23 or 71 elders to attend Sanhedrin in an emergency meeting. Now, this was illegal act in the eyes of Jewish law since Sanhedrin was only to be operational during daytime, not night time and certainly not overnight. It was a violation of Jewish law.

4 to 5 A.M., Tuesday- The Rooster Crowed.

Traditionally roosters crowed at the twilight of sunrise. That is, a faded but increasing sunlight but no sun in sight. Roosters are known to crow at that moment. It is nature's alarm clocks, naturally. When Peter denied third time in anger and cursing, then the rooster crowed.

Matthew 26:73 - 75 -

73 And after a while came unto him they that stood by, and said to Peter, Surely thou also art one of them; for thy speech bewrayeth thee.

74 Then began he to curse and to swear, saying, I know not the man. And immediately the cock crew.

75 And Peter remembered the word of Jesus, which said unto him, Before the cock crow, thou shalt deny me thrice. And he went out, and wept bitterly.

The scriptures also found in John about the rooster crowed. John 18:27.

Because of the rooster crowed. It was sunrise at the moment. This illegal court had to be shut down before the general public knew this.

5 A.M., Tuesday- Judas Hanged himself.

Judas who betrayed Jesus Christ hung himself after he repented and threw the 30 pieces of silver back to the priests and went about to hang himself. Likely a tree just outside of Jerusalem.

Matthew 27:5 -

And he (Judas) cast down the pieces of silver in the temple, and departed, and went and hanged himself.

5 or 6 A.M., Tuesday -- Jewish Priests and Jewish Soldiers brought Jesus to Pilate.

Remember this still the Tuesday 14 Nisan.

Matthew 27:1 -

When the morning was come, all the chief priests and elders of the people took counsel against Jesus to put him to death:

After the rooster crowed, likely the high priests and elders in this illegal court, Sanhedrin had to bring Jesus to the Roman Prefect Pontius Pilate. He was governor of the providence of land where modern Israel is presently located. He ruled for ten years from 26 AD to 36 AD. Pilate was governor under Emperor Tiberius during Senatus Populusque Romanus (SPQR)-Senate and the People of Rome, official name of the Roman Republic and was used during the Empire as well as they still use that in Roma, Italia (Rome, Italy) today. Pilate was a prefect of Judea as proven in all four Canonical Gospels, Book of Acts, and 1 Timothy but also on the Pilate Stone. The name Prefect was more official title than Govenor.

Pilate regulated Roman laws throughout the occupied Judea. This is a strong evidence and only evidence that Pontius Pilate, archeologically proven with the Pilate Stone which was discovered in 1961 by an Archeological team discovering the stone in Caesarea, a town where the Roman province headquartered. Akin to state governor offices such as Albany, New York; Little Rock, Arkansas; Sacramento, California; and Tallahassee, Florida. Roman Empire was a Republic very similar to what United States adopted from.

You need to remember Pilate was cruel and usually ordered criminals executions. The Gospels, Philo, and Flavis Josephus, the Jewish author and historian all mentioned that Prefect Pilate was cruel, judgmental, and being unfair.

Caesarea was a coastal city in Judea however, likely Prefect Pontius Pilate was in Jerusalem because of the unrest of late. Normally governors would be in Jerusalem when there are unrest or some localized situation that needed to be resolved. Caesarea is located in Northern-mid coast. If you were to look at the map, it is in Northwest of Jerusalem. It is roughly 75 miles apart. So, likely Pilate was not in Caesarea. He was in Jerusalem. Likely stayed at

110

It was happenstance that Pilate was in Jerusalem at that week when Jesus was arrested. Perhaps because of Passover that week and Pilate wanted to be sure everything is in order- no riots, no violence, and no demonstrations similar you see today with protests anywhere around the world. Traditionally riots and protests marches are or were coordinated with certain holidays or special days.

Anyway, back to the timeline. They may have woken Pilate when the Jewish council bringing Jesus to Pilate because the Jewish council were not allowed to put Jesus to death. Only the Roman authority can approve the death of someone. A Prefect is a judge as well. A governor, judge, tax collector, and soldier all in one. Mainly military though for prefects. Usually can be promoted from being a soldier or be chosen by Emperor or even by election. More sources are found in Wikipedia.

The Jewish council asked Pilate for a quick Roman court to judge Jesus to death. Matthew 27:1 - 2, 11 - 14; John 18:28 - 38.

Likely 8 A.M., Tuesday Morning, Jesus was send to Herod.

Of course, Prefect Pilate found nothing wrong with Jesus and still the Jewish people wants Pilate to do something. But Pilate found out that Jesus was a Galilee. Therefore, send Jesus to the proper jurisdiction –the Galilee Court.

Luke 23: 5 – 11 –

5 And they were the more fierce, saying, He stirreth up the people, teaching throughout all Jewry, beginning from Galilee to this place.

6 When Pilate heard of Galilee, he asked whether the man were a Galilaean.

7 And as soon as he knew that he belonged unto Herod's jurisdiction, he sent him to Herod, who himself also was at Jerusalem at that time.

8 And when Herod saw Jesus, he was exceeding glad: for he was desirous to see him of a long season, because he had heard many things of him; and he hoped to have seen some miracle done by him.

9 Then he questioned with him in many words; but he answered him nothing.

10 And the chief priests and scribes stood and vehemently accused him.

11 And Herod with his men of war set him at nought, and mocked him, and arrayed him in a gorgeous robe, and sent him again to Pilate.

Herod was not the same Herod who ordered Jesus's death when Jesus was an infant. This is same man who was related to the Herod the Great. Herod Antipas was son of the Herod the Great. His name should be renamed as Herod the Terrible. Jesus called him "That fox" in Luke 13:32. Of course, Herod Antipas being that fox mocked on Jesus wanting Jesus to do miracles and Jesus would not do that and put on an expensive robe on Jesus. It was bullying. But because Jesus being innocent and just, Herod Antipas send Jesus back to Pilate.

Likely 10 A.M. to 12 Noon, Tuesday Morning, Pilate scourged Jesus.

Prefect Pilate had Jesus scourged. Flagged 39 times, Jesus had crown of thorns on his head. This is cruel form of punishment. Using whips made with sharp objects. And just for Jesus, they made a crown of thorns. Likely from bramble which is common in Israel.

The soldiers mocked Jesus and made crown of thorns and had a robe and bowed before Jesus but laughed at him. This is bullying and they mocked Jesus because they doubted He is the King of the Jews. Likely they heard what Pilate asking Jesus if Jesus is the King of the Jews.

John 19:1 – 3 –

1 Then Pilate therefore took Jesus, and scourged him.

2 And the soldiers platted a crown of thorns, and put it on his head, and they put on him a purple robe,

3 And said, Hail, King of the Jews! and they smote him with their hands.

3 P.M.- Tuesday, the Jury Was the Public.

Pilate saw Jesus again and was sick of how the Jewish people are doing to Jesus. Questioned Jesus a few more then ordered a judgement. Being a Prefect, Pilate said it is a Jewish tradition during Passover week for the public to choose which man to be released and the other judged to death.

Likely the public were gathering in early afternoon after Pilate announced about the tradition and second of all, the public knew Jesus was arrested. Word got around since many people were at the Mount of Olives when they arrested Jesus and they spread fast when people got up in the morning when the rooster crowed. And many may have waited as well at the porch where the Prefect of Judea resided during Passover week.

John 19: 13 –

When Pilate therefore heard that saying, he brought Jesus forth, and sat down in the judgment seat in a place that is called the Pavement, but in the Hebrew, Gabbatha.

This was the final hours Jesus walked. When Pilate decided it was time, he requested for Barabbas to be brought up from the prison while Jesus was at the palace and brought both men to the porch and Pilate shouted...It was three in afternoon.

John 19:14 –

And it was the preparation of the passover, and about **the sixth hour**: and he saith unto the Jews, Behold your King!

This verse above showed when this occurred.

John 18: 39 -

But ye have a custom, that I should release unto you one at the passover: will ye therefore that I release unto you the King of the Jews?

Matthew 27:17 -

Therefore when they were gathered together, Pilate said unto them, Whom will ye that I release unto you? Barabbas, or Jesus which is called Christ?

Of course, the crowd shouted that they wanted Barabbas released. Barabbas was a criminal. He was a rioter. Apparently a protester against the Roman Empire. Only found in Mark and Dr. Luke regarding Barabbas's criminal role.

Luke 22:18 – 19 –

8 And they cried out all at once, saying, Away with this man, and release unto us Barabbas:

19 (Who for a certain **sedition made in the city**, and for **murder**, was cast into prison.)

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

In King James, sedition made in the city means a person who rioted against government. And he murdered someone likely in that riot – perhaps a Roman soldier who was an officer attempting to control a riot. Sound familiar. The word perhaps is basically my opinion. If you read the scripture, it is clear what it says.

Sedition is Stasis. Strong's number: G4714. In Strong's as it described-

From the base of G2476; a standing (properly the act) that is (by analogy) position (existence); by implication a popular uprising; figuratively controversy: - dissension insurrection X standing uproar.

So, Pilate who really did not want to judge Jesus and wanted Jesus to be released but three times he asked the public to release Jesus but they wanted Barabbas.

Luke 23:20 - 23 -

20 Pilate therefore, willing to release Jesus, spake again to them.

21 But they cried, saying, Crucify him, crucify him.

22 And he said unto them the third time, Why, what evil hath he done? I have found no cause of death in him: I will therefore chastise him, and let him go.

23 And they were instant with loud voices, requiring that he might be crucified. And the voices of them and of the chief priests prevailed.

24 And Pilate gave sentence that it should be as they required.

The Jewish people really wanted to crucify Jesus Christ. Pilate clearly did not want to at all. He had no choice but do it. So, Pilate released Barabbas and did not want to be partake of what the Jewish people want to do with Jesus. This is why he washed his hands.

Matthew 27:24 –

When Pilate saw that he could prevail nothing, but that rather a tumult was made, he took water, and washed his hands before the multitude, saying, I am innocent of the blood of this just person: see ye to it.

Because it was already afternoon, they send Jesus to prison to be prepared for the Cross. This was likely Jesus was in prison and the mockery occurred all day and night.

Matthew 27:26 -31 -

26 Then released he Barabbas unto them: and when he had scourged Jesus, he delivered him to be crucified.

27 Then the soldiers of the governor took Jesus into the common hall, and gathered unto him the whole band of soldiers.

28 And they stripped him, and put on him a scarlet robe.

29 And when they had platted a crown of thorns, they put it upon his head, and a reed in his right hand: and they bowed the knee before him, and mocked him, saying, Hail, King of the Jews!

30 And they spit upon him, and took the reed, and smote him on the head.

31 And after that they had mocked him, they took the robe off from him, and put his own raiment on him, and led him away to crucify him.

Late Afternoon till Next Morning – Jesus was scourged, prepared for Cross.

Likely, the next day that Jesus was crucified. Here is the reason why. It was already afternoon that Tuesday after running around and arguments and the trials. Jesus had a total of four trials. And ended up with the Jury-the public quickly judged Jesus to death. It was taking time from the deck or balcony where Prefect Pilate asking the public to choose between Jesus and Barabbas. The situation with the public riot lasted for hours. The soldiers had to move Jesus from point A to point B. Likely the barracks where the soldiers were living at or prison nearby. Normally prisons do not set up close to where leaders live. Likely cross town.

They also had to make another cross. Remember, manufacturing was not ideal at the time because of lack of development of technology. It was rudimentary therefore, it took hours before it was used. And because they had to do a special order from Pilate to make the title to be nailed on the cross.

It was less than 24 hours before Jesus would be nailed on the Cross. They had a big day. They still mocked on Jesus while Jesus was chained. The Bible said nothing about in between Pilate ordered Jesus to be crucify and when Jesus was nailed on the Cross.

In the meantime, Jesus was whipped likely 39 times because if Romans followed Jewish laws being Jesus as a Jewish, the law follows in...

Deuteronomy 25:3 -

Forty stripes he may give him, and not exceed: lest, if he should exceed, and beat him above these with many stripes, then thy brother should seem vile unto thee.

Apostle Paul experienced the same amount of whipping as well. (2 Corinthians 11:24).

Good Wednesday, likely 6 A.M. to 7 A.M. – Walk with The Cross over Shoulder.

It was already Wednesday morning around 6 a.m. that Jesus was waken and ordered to walk his cross from in the city of Jerusalem to where He would be crucified at. Beginning with the Common Hall where the Roman soldiers mocked Jesus till the Calvary. The Common Hall was perhaps the Forum or at the yard at the Prefect's quarters or where the soldiers resided at. That would be right next to the Temple Mount according to archeological records. This means quite a walk through the entire Jerusalem West of the Temple Mount till the Calvary that was located outside of Northwestern walls of Jerusalem.

Likely it was at "Place of a Skull" or better known as *Calvary*, or *Golgotha*. Golgotha is a Greek word meaning, "Skull." The word Golgotha you can see the spelling similar to *Goth* or *Gothic*. That location is immediately exterior of the walls of Jerusalem.

Today, there are many conflicting location where Jesus Christ was crucified on the Cross. But the Scriptures tells the fact where. And because what the Scriptures say, the location in person has to be accounted for.

Matthew 27:33 -

And when they were come unto a place called **Golgotha**, that is to say, a place of a skull,

Mark 15:22 -

And they bring him unto the place **Golgotha**, which is, being interpreted, **The place of a skull.**

Luke 23:33 –

And when they were come to the place, which is called **Calvary**, there they crucified him, and the malefactors, one on the right hand, and the other on the left.

John 19:17 –

And he bearing his cross went forth into a place called **the place of a skull**, which is called in the Hebrew **Golgotha:**

John 19:20 –

This title then read many of the Jews: for the place where Jesus was crucified was **nigh to the city**: and it was written in Hebrew, and Greek, and Latin.

Hebrews 13:12 -

Wherefore Jesus also, that he might sanctify the people with his own blood, suffered without the gate.

Apparently the Calvary was just outside of the main gates. The next verse, Matthew 27:39 made sense because people walked by the crosses that Jesus and the two other men were crucified upon. You need to understand this is standard of Roman "criminal justice" system worked. They normally have crosses and stakes for those who were beheaded to be stacked on-on the side of the roads across the entire Empire region of Europe, Middle East, and Northern Africa. This was no different.

So, people saw Jesus and others on their crosses that day.

Matthew 27:39 –

And they that passed by reviled him, wagging their heads,

Reviled means mocking. They were booing Jesus. Maybe others swearing and whatever they were doing because the rest of the verse saying they wagged their heads. Maybe some mocked pretending death on the crosses. Kind of like what that Saturday live mockery TV show on TV late Saturday evening would do. Exact the same concept. Next verse said it all. Very much like that stupid television program. And it should be shut down anyway!

Mark 15:29 -

And they that passed by railed on him, wagging their heads, and saying, Ah, thou that destroyest the temple, and buildest it in three days,

So, that was the location where Jesus was nailed and crucified at. It was uphill and a struggle harder this way because of uphill and the weight of the wooden cross.

It was matter of many hours that Jesus Christ walked because of the abuses He endured from Roman Soldiers, the Jewish leaders, the public, both verbally and physically while carrying of His own Cross.

From what the Scriptures tells us, Jesus was not the only one carrying the cross. It was Simon, a Cyrenian who was coming in Jerusalem and he was seized by the soldiers and ordered him to carry the Cross along with Jesus Christ. Remember that Jesus was flagged, abused, hit, beard and hair pulled, punched, kicked...

And Simon, the Cyrenian was healthier who walked far which was healthy enough for him to bear the cross for Jesus Christ. This symbolize that we all are to bear our own crosses with and for Jesus Christ. The four Gospels does not display the 13 stages of the Cross as the Catholic Church says. None of that. All four Gospels explained clearly short, sweet, and to the point. Only that it is Simon the Cyrenian helped most of the way. Likely from where Jesus was held at till the Calvary.

There are maps on the internet but not one could provide me measurement and educated guess of how long the walk was. However, it was likely started around 6 a.m. to start the walk.

Jesus walked out of the Common Hall where he was held overnight with the mockery.

6 A.M.-

Matthew 27:27 - 33 -

27 Then the soldiers of the governor took Jesus into the common hall, and gathered unto him the whole band of soldiers.

28 And they stripped him, and put on him a scarlet robe.

29 And when they had platted a crown of thorns, they put it upon his head, and a reed in his right hand: and they bowed the knee before him, and mocked him, saying, Hail, King of the Jews!

30 And they spit upon him, and took the reed, and smote him on the head.

31 And after that they had mocked him, they took the robe off from him, and put his own raiment on him, and led him away to crucify him.

32 And as they came out, they found a man of Cyrene, Simon by name: him they compelled to bear his cross.

33 And when they were come unto a place called Golgotha, that is to say, a place of a skull,

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

Apparently as you can see about Simon. He was walking by the Common Hall and because he was just walking by rather than a "required-to-stand-by-the-edge-of-the-road-to-watch-someone-carrying-a-cross." This is more likely really happened. As said in verse 32. That moment, Jesus and Simon carried the cross all the way to the Calvary. Likely this trip was about three hours cross town because of the weight.

Simon was also mentioned in Mark 15:21. Because of the weight. It has to be 200 to 300 pounds. Jesus was likely 5 feet 9 inches tall. We do not know the physique of Jesus Christ because only we heard the Gospel of Jesus Christ plus historians from First Century including Flavis Josephus in this instance. Jesus was a carpenter in his young adulthood from around 13 years of age to 30 years of age. Wood and concrete were common in Judea in First Century. But because of injuries and Jesus being in the flesh, he could not lift 200 to 300 pound wooden cross. It is common today people can lift up to 75 pounds. The Cross was three times that much. With Simon, that would be more likely 150 pounds to 200 pounds wooden cross.

You need to remember humans in Pre-Industrial Age endured more physical work than modern times. Thus, more muscles, stronger, and somewhat larger in areas that they are not the same as today. Sizes of humans were different back then.

Anyway, Simon who was ordered to carry along with Jesus carried most of the way. From exterior of the hall to the hill.

8:45 a.m. –

Jesus and Simon with the Cross they carried arrived where Jesus was crucified. The Bible tells us Jesus was on the Cross from third hour to the ninth hour. Then the soldiers then verse 23, the soldiers gave Jesus a wine with myrrh. Myrrh acted as incense or in this case, medication. Jesus knew what myrrh would do. Because it was mixed with wine. That would be intoxication as a drug. Jesus needed to stay pure until it is finished meaning He accepted our sins while He was on the Cross. He was not yet on the Cross so this is why Jesus rejected. In modern medical understanding, myrrh is used for mouthwashes, tooth cleanings (tooth brushing), aches, and sprains. Jesus was already sore from the abuses He accepted from the soldiers, plus people and the

emotional aspect of what is happening. And Jesus needed to die on the Cross for us therefore, no medication needed at all. His goal was to die that day.

Mark 15:23-25 -

23 And they gave him to drink wine mingled with myrrh: but he received it not.

24 And when they had crucified him, they parted his garments, casting lots upon them, what every man should take.

25 And it was the third hour, and they crucified him.

The third hour as we understand is related to the Judaism Calendar that the day starts at sunset to sunset. Third hour is from 6 a.m. Jesus was nailed at 9 a.m.

9 a.m. --

As said before in Mark 27:25 that Jesus was nailed to the Cross. Both hands, which technically from the wrists on. They nailed the nails through Jesus's wrists.

9 A.M.-3 P.M. Good Wednesday—Jesus on the Cross.

Again, from what we learned in Mark 27:25, Jesus was nailed on the Cross and the Romans soldiers used ropes to lift up the Cross. And let it slide in the hole. That made it worse because of the effects gravity did on Jesus and many multitudes faced upon. Their weight were being pulled down and not only that, the nerves effected on their arms. Carpel Tunnel, arms sleeping, and more. Breathing was difficult as well.

Mark 15:25 -

And it was the third hour, and they crucified him.

About 9:30 A.M. – The Two Thieves on crosses next to Jesus.

The two thieves who were already staked on their crosses adjunct to Jesus. One was trying to tell Jesus to save Himself but the other realized who was on that specific cross-Jesus Christ and told that first person realize that was Jesus and said to Jesus to remember him in Paradise—his way of saying Heaven which was not occurred till later. This is at a period of time at 9/9:30 a.m. But those two thieves did not speak to Jesus yet about salvation. It was not till a couple of hours later in my opinion.

Matthew 27:38 -

Then were there two thieves crucified with him, one on the right hand, and another on the left.

Mark 15:27 -

And with him they crucify two thieves; the one on his right hand, and the other on his left.

John 19:18 -

Where they crucified him, and two other with him, on either side one, and Jesus in the midst.

Luke 23:33 - 34 -

33 And when they were come to the place, which is called Calvary, there they crucified him, and the malefactors, one on the right hand, and the other on the left.

34 Then said Jesus, Father, forgive them; for they know not what they do. And they parted his raiment, and cast lots.

Between 9 a.m. and around 2 p.m.—High Priest, Passerby mockery.

People were mocking on Jesus and wanted Jesus to surrender by commanding Himself to come off the Cross and be healed and so forth because Satan started to realize his huge mistake. But Satan did not really realize till after Jesus was risen from the dead the mistake he made on Jesus Christ. It was about mocking on Jesus Christ.

Matthew 27:39 - 43 -

39 And they that passed by reviled him, wagging their heads,

40 And saying, Thou that destroyest the temple, and buildest it in three days, save thyself. If thou be the Son of God, come down from the cross.

41 Likewise also the chief priests mocking him, with the scribes and elders, said,

42 He saved others; himself he cannot save. If he be the King of Israel, let him now come down from the cross, and we will believe him.

43 He trusted in God; let him deliver him now, if he will have him: for he said, I am the Son of God.

About 11 A.M. – The Thieves Next to Jesus.

The two thieves who were next to Jesus Christ. One on each side heard all this mockery from people walking by, the priests, elders, and how Believers and Mary and

some of the Apostles were horrified watching Jesus on the Cross and knew who Jesus was because of the sign they posted above Jesus' head.

In the Book of John, it was very clear about the thieves talking about and talking to Jesus Christ.

Luke 23:39 - 43 -

39 And one of the malefactors which were hanged railed on him, saying, If thou be Christ, save thyself and us.

40 But the other answering rebuked him, saying, Dost not thou fear God, seeing thou art in the same condemnation?

41 And we indeed justly; for we receive the due reward of our deeds: but this man hath done nothing amiss.

42 And he said unto Jesus, Lord, remember me when thou comest into thy kingdom.

43 And Jesus said unto him, Verily I say unto thee, Today shalt thou be with me in paradise.

It was beautifully planned by God with those two thieves. He was trying to show us we have a choice: accept Jesus and be in Heaven or reject Jesus and go to the fire forever. Not only that, Jesus was literally witnessing from the Cross! How? Look at this way: the two thieves on the crosses and Jesus was showing the world right there the way to salvation. Jesus was literally witnessing right toward the end!

After this was done...

Also Jesus shouted to his mother and her son who was one of the disciples. With them were other women and believers.

John 19:25 – 27 –

25 Now there stood by the cross of Jesus his mother, and his mother's sister, Mary the wife of Cleophas, and Mary Magdalene.

26 When Jesus therefore saw his mother, and the disciple standing by, whom he loved, he saith unto his mother, Woman, behold thy son!

27 Then saith he to the disciple, Behold thy mother! And from that hour that disciple took her unto his own home.

Jesus knew it was time, the darkness coming, and His own death.

12 Noon – Darkness Rolled In.

The Scriptures clearly showed very specific and more detailed about what was happening moments by moments that Good Wednesday.

Matthew 27:45 -

Now from the **sixth hour** there was darkness over all the land unto the **ninth hour**.

Recall the hours. Third hour is 9 a.m. while sixth hour is 12 noon and then ninth hour at three p.m. They use those times because of the Judaism Calendar of sunset to sunset. But for daylight, it is the hour pass the sunrise. For instance, fourth hour means ten a.m. because the sunrise was at six am. Technically sun already risen at about 5:10 a.m. but the Jewish followed the 6 o'clock system.

At 12 noon, it was becoming dark already. Not the same darkness that a thunderstorm rolling in with stratospheric clouds such as stratocumulus. No. And certainly not a solar ellipse either. Just plainly darkness rolled in.

It lasted three hours. Solar ellipses are usually few minutes. Storms usually rolled through from few minutes to an hour. Even with hurricanes and tornados, they vary.

No, this was literally darkness like night from noon to three p.m. This showed nearness of Jesus' Death.

As it grew darker, the weaker Jesus was becoming. Everything in the power of 3. More on that in a moment.

Jesus was becoming thirsty and He knew it was time...

Moments before 3 P.M. – Jesus thirst and spoke.

Jesus was being thirsty and knew it was time. His role as Lord and Savior to die on the Cross was needed to be fulfilled.

John 19:28 – 30 –

28 After this, Jesus knowing that all things were now accomplished, that the scripture might be fulfilled, saith, I thirst.

29 Now there was set a vessel full of vinegar: and they filled a spunge with vinegar, and put it upon hyssop, and put it to his mouth.

30 When Jesus therefore had received the vinegar, he said, It is finished: and he bowed his head, and gave up the ghost.

Matthew 27:46 - 50 -

46 And about the ninth hour Jesus cried with a loud voice, saying, Eli, Eli, Iama sabachthani? that is to say, My God, my God, why hast thou forsaken me?

47 Some of them that stood there, when they heard that, said, This man calleth for Elias.

48 And straightway one of them ran, and took a spunge, and filled it with vinegar, and put it on a reed, and gave him to drink.

49 The rest said, Let be, let us see whether Elias will come to save him.

50 Jesus, when he had cried again with a loud voice, yielded up the ghost.

Luke 23:46 - 49 -

46 And when Jesus had cried with a loud voice, he said, Father, into thy hands I commend my spirit: and having said thus, he gave up the ghost.

47 Now when the centurion saw what was done, he glorified God, saying, Certainly this was a righteous man.

48 And all the people that came together to that sight, beholding the things which were done, smote their breasts, and returned.

49 And all his acquaintance, and the women that followed him from Galilee, stood afar off, beholding these things.

Mark 15: 34 - 41 -

34 And at the ninth hour Jesus cried with a loud voice, saying, Eloi, Eloi, Iama sabachthani? which is, being interpreted, My God, my God, why hast thou forsaken me?

35 And some of them that stood by, when they heard it, said, Behold, he calleth Elias.

36 And one ran and filled a spunge full of vinegar, and put it on a reed, and gave him to drink, saying, Let alone; let us see whether Elias will come to take him down.

37 And Jesus cried with a loud voice, and gave up the ghost.

38 And the veil of the temple was rent in twain from the top to the bottom.

39 And when the centurion, which stood over against him, saw that he so cried out, and gave up the ghost, he said, Truly this man was the Son of God.

40 There were also women looking on afar off: among whom was Mary Magdalene, and Mary the mother of James the less and of Joses, and Salome;

41 (Who also, when he was in Galilee, followed him, and ministered unto him;) and many other women which came up with him unto Jerusalem.

Roman Centurion who was a Roman Soldier in higher ranks. It would be equal to a captain. He was first to see that Jesus IS God. He repented that moment. You could say he was the first in New Testament to be saved. When Jesus died, that was truly New Testament, Jesus lived toward the end of Old Testament because you must understand that people had daily sacrifices and the veil was not torn till Christ's death as you read in...

Matthew 27:51 -

And, behold, the veil of the temple was rent in twain from the top to the bottom; and the earth did quake, and the rocks rent;

Mark 15:38 -

And the veil of the temple was rent in twain from the top to the bottom.

4 P.M. to 6 P.M. Good Wednesday – Joseph and Others Buried Christ.

Now the sky became light again. Bright again. But soon it would be sunset for sure. Likely there were clouds. It was cloudy because of what was happening.

Joseph of Arimathaea who was a Jewish Believer in Jesus Christ and a well-to-do gentleman who asked Prefect Pilate for Jesus' body to be buried. And had to hurry. Because it was only three hours left. Because of the Passover. Because of the Jewish Passover week that includes the Feast of Unleavened Bread, they had to hurry before sunset that those men on the crosses die so they broke their legs so that they could not push up their legs to breath. Without their legs, they die faster. Those two thieves were still alive when Jesus died. Only Jesus died (read above at the three p.m.) Jesus did not want to be dead of broken legs. He knew they would have their legs broken and that is not scriptural therefore, to fulfill, Jesus had to die of broken heart. He already gave up the ghost. They then had to pierce through the rib to Jesus' heart and out pour were blood and water. Yes, water!

So, that was done. Many people already left but only stayed behind were the women, some of the disciples, and Believers and the Roman soldiers including the Centurion. Likely the women and the Disciples asked Joseph of Arimathaea to handle dialogue with Pilate because he was a counsellor- He was a lawyer for Jesus and the Disciples likely. The same that every business and ministries and churches today need lawyers for legal purposes. Likely this is what Joseph of Arimathaea did. So, likely he was asked to go see Pilate for permission to take Jesus's body rather than His body being thrown with other dead bodies in Potter's field or likely, the burial grounds at the Calvary. They wanted to separate Jesus from everyone else and had him buried at Joseph of Arimathaea's family plot- a tomb.

Matthew 27:57 - 61 -

57 When the even was come, there came a rich man of Arimathaea, named Joseph, who also himself was Jesus' disciple:

58 He went to Pilate, and begged the body of Jesus. Then Pilate commanded the body to be delivered.

59 And when Joseph had taken the body, he wrapped it in a clean linen cloth,

60 And laid it in his own new tomb, which he had hewn out in the rock: and he rolled a great stone to the door of the sepulchre, and departed.

61 And there was Mary Magdalene, and the other Mary, sitting over against the sepulchre.

Mark 15:42 - 47 -

42 And now when the even was come, because it was the preparation, that is, the day before the sabbath,

43 Joseph of Arimathaea, an honourable counsellor, which also waited for the kingdom of God, came, and went in boldly unto Pilate, and craved the body of Jesus.

44 And Pilate marvelled if he were already dead: and calling unto him the centurion, he asked him whether he had been any while dead.

45 And when he knew it of the centurion, he gave the body to Joseph.

46 And he bought fine linen, and took him down, and wrapped him in the linen, and laid him in a sepulchre which was hewn out of a rock, and rolled a stone unto the door of the sepulchre.

47 And Mary Magdalene and Mary the mother of Joses beheld where he was laid.

Luke 23:50 - 56 -

And, behold, there was a man named Joseph, a counsellor; and he was a good man, and a just:

(The same had not consented to the counsel and deed of them;) he was of Arimathaea, a city of the Jews: who also himself waited for the kingdom of God.

This man went unto Pilate, and begged the body of Jesus.

And he took it down, and wrapped it in linen, and laid it in a sepulchre that was hewn in stone, wherein never man before was laid.

54 And that day was the preparation, and the sabbath drew on.

And the women also, which came with him from Galilee, followed after, and beheld the sepulchre, and how his body was laid.

And they returned, and prepared spices and ointments; and rested the sabbath day according to the commandment.

John 19:57 - 61 -

When the even was come, there came a rich man of Arimathaea, named Joseph, who also himself was Jesus' disciple:

He went to Pilate, and begged the body of Jesus. Then Pilate commanded the body to be delivered.

59 And when Joseph had taken the body, he wrapped it in a clean linen cloth,

And laid it in his own new tomb, which he had hewn out in the rock: and he rolled a great stone to the door of the sepulchre, and departed.

And there was Mary Magdalene, and the other Mary, sitting over against the sepulchre.

They hurried within those three hours to buy Jesus so they can rest for that.

Now, this is another set of three... Jesus was quickly buried within three hours. Three hours on the Cross, then second set of three hours on Cross that it was darkness out. Three sets of three. Interesting to note this was third day after Palm Sunday.

CHAPTER FOUR: THE RESURRECTION AND ASCENSION TO HEAVEN

3 P.M. to 6 P.M. Wednesday- Jesus was buried in Tomb.

Now that Jesus was buried in the cave owned by Joseph of Arimathaea. They already hurried up and buried him there. All wrapped and spread with spices. They sealed up because the priests and even Roman officials feared that Jesus would be risen again or someone would steal Jesus's body so they sealed up by a rolling wheel shaped stone. They feared even a miracle would happen because Jesus warned He would be rebuilt in three days. Meaning risen from the Dead.

Dead in capitalized D because it belonged to Christ.

Jesus even prophesized that He, Himself would die and rise from the Dead in three days. The temple Jesus was speaking of was Himself. He is the Temple. Not the building but of His own Body. Because Jesus is God in the flesh, God Himself in the Body of Jesus Christ therefore, Temple the same concept when God appeared behind

the veil until the Cross when Jesus gave up His life. Now Jesus dwell in the Believers of Jesus Christ.

John 2:19 – 22 –

19 Jesus answered and said unto them, Destroy this temple, and in three days I will raise it up.

20 Then said the Jews, Forty and six years was this temple in building, and wilt thou rear it up in three days?

21 But he spake of the temple of his body.

22 When therefore he was risen from the dead, his disciples remembered that he had said this unto them; and they believed the scripture, and the word which Jesus had said.

Old Testament scriptures were often mentioned about Jesus Christ and therefore, the Disciples recalled the Scriptures and understood what Jesus was talking about as said in verse 22.

The objective is three. The realm of or the relatively of three. Age 33 when Christ died, 3 years in ministry, 3 days prior that Good Wednesday Jesus last walked, 3 hours of walking with the Cross, 3 hours of being on the Cross while sunshine out. 3 hours of darkness on the Cross, then 3 hours to bury before sunset. The power of 3.

Then this is very important verse as I spoke in last chapter regarding these threes.

Matthew 12:40 -

For as Jonas was three days and three nights in the whale's belly; so shall the Son of man be three days and three nights in the heart of the earth.

Jesus clearly did state he will rise from the Dead AFTER three days according to Matthew 27:63. That is because that is what the religious leaders remembered exactly what Jesus said very clearly. (See the verse in four paragraphs.)

Jesus Christ spoke of that verse the same with the Temple. Clearly Jesus knew and prophesized what would happen to Him. The power of 3s. Jesus was buried in the cave which represents the earth. But the belly of the earth. That is more than just being in the cave. He was in the Earth!

This is why Jesus died on Wednesday, not Friday as many thought. Jesus died on Wednesday, period. He was hurried to be buried before 6 p.m. before the Judaism Calendar of Thursday (Wednesday night modern calendar).

6 P.M. Thursday (Judaism) Night (Modern Wednesday Night)

The soldiers were ordered to guard the tomb because of thievery and because perhaps a riot or something could happen. The next day according to the scripture literally means after 6 p.m. So, it was already modern day Wednesday night/Judaism Thursday night. The Jewish leaders asked Prefect Governor Pilate for guards at the Tomb of Jesus Christ.

Matthew 27: 62 - 66 -

62 Now the next day, that followed the day of the preparation, the chief priests and Pharisees came together unto Pilate,

63 Saying, Sir, we remember that that deceiver said, while he was yet alive, After three days I will rise again.

64 Command therefore that the sepulchre be made sure until the third day, lest his disciples come by night, and steal him away, and say unto the people, He is risen from the dead: so the last error shall be worse than the first.

65 Pilate said unto them, Ye have a watch: go your way, make it as sure as ye can.

66 So they went, and made the sepulchre sure, sealing the stone, and setting a watch.

Clearly it was what they wanted to do. They wanted to be sure Jesus stayed dead. Verse 63 clearly said it all that they were afraid of Jesus being risen from the Dead and next verse (64) said anyone could come and steal Jesus' body to fool people that Jesus was "risen" if Jesus was not to be risen. If you read carefully, verse 64 clearly stated that the last error which means that the Disciples would steal Jesus's body and say he was risen which would be worse error. They did not want the panic. They did not want any of those two options at all.

But... Jesus did rise from the Dead.

Many thought Jesus went to Hell during those three nights and three days like Jonah experienced however, that assessment was in error by many people. If you look at the scriptures. Here is proof where Jesus went.

Jesus said on the Cross-

Luke 23:46 -

46 And when Jesus had cried with a loud voice, he said, **Father, into thy hands I commend my spirit:** and having said thus, he gave up the ghost.

Jesus went to Heaven! He went to Heaven! He already went up there! He went with all the believers who passed away in Old Testament and the thief whom Jesus promised he will be in paradise.

Because of the thieves were still alive when Jesus died on the Cross, the thieves passed away minutes if not, just before the hour after their legs were broken by the Roman soldier as said in...

John 19:31 –

31 The Jews therefore, because it was the preparation, that the bodies should not remain upon the cross on the sabbath day, (for that sabbath day was an high day,) besought Pilate that their legs might be broken, and that they might be taken away.

32 Then came the soldiers, and brake the legs of the first, and of the other which was crucified with him.

33 But when they came to Jesus, and saw that he was dead already, they brake not his legs:

34 But one of the soldiers with a spear pierced his side, and forthwith came there out blood and water.

35 And he that saw it bare record, and his record is true: and he knoweth that he saith true, that ye might believe.

36 For these things were done, that the scripture should be fulfilled, A bone of him shall not be broken.

37 And again another scripture saith, They shall look on him whom they pierced.

This likely occurred after 3 p.m. that day as the sky was brightened up. So, the thief that Jesus promised died after Jesus went to Heaven and he was the first of the New Testament Believer to die after the Cross and went to Heaven. This means all Believers in Jesus Christ including you and I will go to Heaven immediately upon our deaths.

Now, that tells us Jesus went to Heaven. The veil ripped at the Temple Mount. It tells us that animal sacrifices ended. Not need to do this anymore. But the Jewish people revolted till 70 AD that they kept practicing sacrifices. God allowed Roman soldiers to destruct the Temple to stop. And it was successfully stopped. After the Empire fell away and the Muslims took over the Temple Mount and we have today is the Dome of the Rock. Still in Muslim control.

Another evidence of all the graves were cracked open and the Believers of Old Testament were raptured. This was called the "First Rapture" or "The First Blessed Hope."

Matthew 27:51 - 53 -

51 And, behold, the veil of the temple was rent in twain from the top to the bottom; and the **earth did quake**, and the **rocks rent**;

52 And the graves were opened; and many bodies of the saints which slept arose,

53 And came out of the graves after his resurrection, and went into the holy city, and appeared unto many.

People for a couple thousands of years who died believing in the Lord and Savior Jesus Christ during the Old Testament were raised and thousands of people in Jerusalem were shocked to see people alive. It did not say anything but many were shocked. Even Jesus's Apostles- the Disciples and the ladies who were by Jesus when Jesus was dying and died on the Cross. This is why the Centurion realized Jesus Christ is God who died because of all things happened around Jesus Christ.

In Heaven, the Believers from the Old Testaments plus the Thief Jesus promised were welcomed.

This is another subject for another book about the Blessed Hope. Because of the controversial regarding when Jesus will return to save us as Blessed Hope to come. This book is about Jesus's birth and death, risen from dead and went to Heaven.

From Thursday Night Judaism Calendar to Saturday evening just before 6 P.M.

Jesus's body was still in the tomb. Still guarded by the Roman soldiers. Likely four guards which was called, *quaternions* (Acts 12:4). Traditionally for a watch, they have a quad to guard someone or something. That word quaternions you can see the spelling qua is used in quad in modern language. Roman protocol for Roman soldiers is that they are in quads. Kind of like our Navy Seals are in a group when they sneak in to take out someone or arrest or rescue someone.

Jesus was actually in Heaven rejoicing for the Believers of Old Testament in Heaven. But then, to defeat Satan, Jesus must return to the body and be alive again. And to fulfill his prophecy and the Scriptures in Old Testament must be fulfilled. Jesus went back likely at 6 p.m. - Sunset because the Scripture of three nights and three days were fulfilled. It was already evening with sun setting. Roman soldiers were shocked to death, literally.

Jesus may be alive already at 6 p.m. His body was gone. Not because of decomposing. Jesus returned at 6 p.m. and already left. Likely through the tome stone and no one saw Him leave. Or perhaps transported.

141

6 a.m. First Day of the Week- Sunday.

The women returned to the grave and was hoping to ask the guards to allow them to spread spices and scents. Remember that the body decomposed after about three hours. Called, *Rigor mortis*. They buried Jesus immediately before that rigor mortis set in therefore, Jesus's body was already set in decomposing and the stench is horrific. Those days, they bury immediately because of this but not think about the gases set off from the body.

Anyway, they arrived, this happened. Read scripture.

Matthew 28:1-8 -

28 In the end of the sabbath, as it began to dawn toward the first day of the week, came Mary Magdalene and the other Mary to see the sepulchre.

2 And, behold, there was a great earthquake: for the angel of the Lord descended from heaven, and came and rolled back the stone from the door, and sat upon it.

3 His countenance was like lightning, and his raiment white as snow:

4 And for fear of him the keepers did shake, and became as dead men.

5 And the angel answered and said unto the women, Fear not ye: for I know that ye seek Jesus, which was crucified.

6 He is not here: for he is risen, as he said. Come, see the place where the Lord lay.

7 And go quickly, and tell his disciples that he is risen from the dead; and, behold, he goeth before you into Galilee; there shall ye see him: lo, I have told you.

8 And they departed quickly from the sepulchre with fear and great joy; and did run to bring his disciples word.

This tells us Jesus was already alive at 6 p.m. as it was fulfilled in the scriptures of three nights and three days in that order. Then when the ladies arrived, which was already morning and then the angel appeared and the seal stone was already rolled open by the power. Likely the angel opened it himself. And he proclaimed Jesus is not there because He is risen. He opened to show proof Jesus's body was not there. Already transposed outside and already walking. Just like the Old Testament Believers four days before that.

Also see Mark 16:1 – 8; Luke 24:1 – 9; and John 20:1 and 2.

Because of this, the Gospel began starting with the two women-both were Marys and they told the Disciples of Jesus Christ about Jesus's alive and then Jesus was seen by more than 500 people. Jesus first came to see Mary Magdalene then the rest.

Apostle Paul explained clearly short, sweet, and to the point of how many saw Jesus Christ alive.

1 Corinthians 15:4 - 7 -

4 And that he was buried, and that he rose again the third day according to the scriptures:

5 And that he was seen of Cephas, then of the twelve:

6 After that, he was seen of above five hundred brethren at once; of whom the greater part remain unto this present, but some are fallen asleep.

7 After that, he was seen of James; then of all the apostles.

All that in order. This was after the women announced Jesus's alive. This is the beginning of spreading the Gospel.

Jesus walked for 40 days more and spread the Gospel to many people. It was to show the people Jesus is alive. Sure, some fallen asleep meaning they did not believe Him or had doubt. In another word, they thought it was a ghost. Kind of like those who believes in paranormal stuff with all that ghosts, U.F.O.s, Big Foot, and all.

Many Christians did not think about how long Jesus walked. Many said 40 days but many Christians and perhaps pastors, no offense, pastors said they could not answer. A famous American Evangelist who recently passed away did not even answer a Christian question about 40 days with a verse at all and that person asked about that and no one could answer. There is an answer you must read like the Bereans and study daily the Scriptures!

It is found in Acts.

Acts 1:3 and 4 –

3 To whom also he shewed himself alive after his passion by many infallible proofs, being seen of them forty days, and speaking of the things pertaining to the kingdom of God:

4 And, being assembled together with them, commanded them that they should not depart from Jerusalem, but wait for the promise of the Father, which, saith he, ye have heard of me.

I bolded to show the seriousness of the Scripture that it is true that Jesus Christ did stay for 40 days. This aligned to the 40 days of temptation. Jesus started his ministry by being baptized but went to the wilderness for 40 days. After that, he returned and started His ministry. So this is a "Make-up" time. But it was really because Jesus needed to show the world He is Alive as the prophecy showed as Jesus said this.

Luke 24:26 - 27 -

26 Ought not Christ to have suffered these things, and to enter into his glory?

27 And beginning at Moses and all the prophets, he expounded unto them in all the scriptures the things concerning himself.

So, it was oftentimes the prophets and Jesus Himself said about Jesus needed to be risen from the Dead. Praise God.

The Gifts of the Spirit occurred and then Jesus was done with walking and ascended to Heaven. 40 days from the first day of the week when the two Marys went to the tomb. That would be Thursday. This is exactly the count from the day he was in the tomb. That would be 43 days. That is, exactly five weeks. But 40 days Jesus walked after risen from the Dead.

Perhaps this is why churches have services on Wednesday nights. That got that schedule correct. But it is Wednesday night Gregorian calendar. It is Thursday night, Jewish calendar but that was past when the veil torn in halves. It ended. Yet, the Jewish people still follow their calendar.

The Book of Acts chapter 1 explained clearly what was happening to the Apostles.

Jesus went to Heaven literally before the Apostles' eyes.

Acts 1: 9 – 11 –

9 And when he had spoken these things, while they beheld, he was taken up; and a cloud received him out of their sight.

10 And while they looked stedfastly toward heaven as he went up, behold, two men stood by them in white apparel;

11 Which also said, Ye men of Galilee, why stand ye gazing up into heaven? this same Jesus, which is taken up from you into heaven, shall so come in like manner as ye have seen him go into heaven.

This is actual last thing happened with Jesus. They saw not just Jesus, Jesus and two other men in the sky. We do not know who those two men are. Angels? Unlikely. God Himself? If it is and more likely it is God Himself. The Trinity.

Here are two verses that cemented the Tribune God we all know and believe in.

Matthew 28:19 (bolded) -

Go ye therefore, and teach all nations, **baptizing them in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost:**

1 John 5:7 –

For there are three that bear record in heaven, the Father, the Word, and the Holy Ghost: and these three are one.

So, there you have it the date of Jesus's birth and death, and went to heaven.

CHAPTER FIVE: HOW TO GET TO HEAVEN.

Jesus is the only way to Heaven as matter of fact. Jesus died for you and I. He came to earth over 2000 years ago through birth in the flesh and died for us so we can go to Heaven. God so much loves you. How much? If you knew sign language, you would sign your hands way out exactly the same way Jesus did on the Cross. That much!

John 3:16 -

For God so loved the world, that he gave his only begotten Son, that whosoever believeth in him should not perish, but have everlasting life.

Jesus is the only way to salvation. Only way. No other ways. Jesus was the Lamb of God for all of us. Salvation was clearly explained since the days of Moses. The first born Jewish males were spared with the lambs' blood brushed upon the door frames on

the sides and on top of the door. This symbolic that lambs were sacrificed to represent Jesus who died on the Cross.

John 1:29 –

The next day John seeth **Jesus** coming unto him, and saith, Behold **the Lamb of God, which taketh away the sin of the world.**

Clearly stated that John the Baptist saw Jesus was coming and John introduced the world that Jesus the Lamb of God.

Jesus even said only way because Jesus died for us in order to save us.

John 14:6 –

Jesus saith unto him, I am the way, the truth, and the life: no man cometh unto the Father, but by me.

Only way is Jesus. All you need is to surrender your life. Only way, my beloved readers. Surrender your life to Lord and Savior Jesus Christ, the Son of the Living God. Why? We all have sinned against God. Our own sins and the sin of Adam.

Romans 5:12 -

Wherefore, as by one man sin entered into the world, and death by sin; and so death passed upon all men, for that all have sinned: We could not erase sins ourselves or escape from it. Only way is through Jesus Christ that His blood shed for us.

Matthew 26:28 -

For this is my blood of the new testament, which is shed for many for the remission of sins.

We all fall short of glory of God. We need salvation for the sakes of our lives to escape the damnation of Hell upon our death.

Romans 3:23 -

For all have sinned, and come short of the glory of God;

We all are sinners and have sinned and fall short of glory of God therefore, all of us are judged and condemned however, there is a way. Only way is through Jesus Christ.

Please read John chapter 3. This is how you will be saved. By being Born-Again. It means to change your ways.

John 3:1 – 18 –

1 There was a man of the Pharisees, named Nicodemus, a ruler of the Jews:

2 The same came to Jesus by night, and said unto him, Rabbi, we know that thou art a teacher come from God: for no man can do these miracles that thou doest, except God be with him.

3 Jesus answered and said unto him, Verily, verily, I say unto thee, Except a man be born again, he cannot see the kingdom of God.

4 Nicodemus saith unto him, How can a man be born when he is old? can he enter the second time into his mother's womb, and be born?

5 Jesus answered, Verily, verily, I say unto thee, Except a man be born of water and of the Spirit, he cannot enter into the kingdom of God.

6 That which is born of the flesh is flesh; and that which is born of the Spirit is spirit.

7 Marvel not that I said unto thee, Ye must be born again.

8 The wind bloweth where it listeth, and thou hearest the sound thereof, but canst not tell whence it cometh, and whither it goeth: so is every one that is born of the Spirit.

9 Nicodemus answered and said unto him, How can these things be?

10 Jesus answered and said unto him, Art thou a master of Israel, and knowest not these things?

11 Verily, verily, I say unto thee, We speak that we do know, and testify that we have seen; and ye receive not our witness.

12 If I have told you earthly things, and ye believe not, how shall ye believe, if I tell you of heavenly things?

13 And no man hath ascended up to heaven, but he that came down from heaven, even the Son of man which is in heaven.

14 And as Moses lifted up the serpent in the wilderness, even so must the Son of man be lifted up:

15 That whosoever believeth in him should not perish, but have eternal life.

16 For God so loved the world, that he gave his only begotten Son, that whosoever believeth in him should not perish, but have everlasting life.

17 For God sent not his Son into the world to condemn the world; but that the world through him might be saved.

18 He that believeth on him is not condemned: but he that believeth not is condemned already, because he hath not believed in the name of the only begotten Son of God.

Jesus spoke of this. Only way is through Jesus Christ.

Therefore you need to surrender your life to Jesus Christ-

James 4:7 –

Submit yourselves therefore to God. Resist the devil, and he will flee from you.

The word surrender was not found in many translation and this book heavily used King James. However, submit to someone makes logical sense. But how to surrender? Here is the answer that both John the Baptist and Jesus spoke of often.

John the Baptist spoke this.

Matthew 3:1 - 2 -

1 In those days came John the Baptist, preaching in the wilderness of Judaea,

2 And saying, **Repent ye**: for the kingdom of heaven is at hand.

John even spoke of why: because of Jesus Christ. Even Jesus spoke of this as well.

Matthew 4:17 -

From that time Jesus began to preach, and to say, Repent: for the kingdom of heaven is at hand.

It is the only way to Heaven to be with Jesus Christ is to repent which is, to change your ways and life and get on your knees and pray and surrender your life.

Here is a prayer you can pray if you do not know how to pray.

Dear Jesus,

I am now on my knees to pray to you because I am a sinner. I have sinned against you. I realized my life is horrible and I can see why you died for all of us. Because you love the world. I realized that and I want to go to Heaven to be with you. You died for me so I can escape. This is very hard to understand I follow you and I repent of my life and will read the Bible daily and go to church every Sunday and whenever other times church is having. Please give me wisdom and guide me to the right life you desire for me. You are the Lamb of God who died for us. This is shocking and I realized where I am going but with you, I can go to Heaven. I surrender and accept you as Lord and Savior. Please fill me in my life your love and washed my sins away with the Blood of the Lamb—Jesus Christ. Thank you for accepting me in the name of our Lord Jesus in your precious name of the Lord Jesus Christ. Amen. Congratulations you are now Born-Again Christian and please purchase a King James Bible and attend a true good strong King James Bible church that speaks the Truth and attend regularly.

God truly bless you in Jesus' Name and welcome to the Family of Jesus Christ!

BOUT THE AUTHOR.

Mark Falso is Born-Again Christian. He accepted His Personal Lord and Savior Jesus Christ on March 28, 1988 at 10 a.m. after realizing what he would been gone without Jesus in His heart. It was on March 20 that Mark could have died from stab wounds that almost happened.

Mark had his calling to serve on August 10, 1995 at 1 p.m. at the county courthouse after his arrest for falsely accused of harassment. Mark was called to serve to the Deaf and to the singles about Jesus Christ.

Mark has served in several churches in Central New York, South Florida, and Central America. Missions four times to Central America to help establish ten new Deaf ministries that now has sprang other new Deaf ministries there and over 50 Deaf saved. Several of them during college in Rochester, New York.

Mark helped to increase a Deaf ministry in Miami to grow and successfully grew average five more attendees weekly.

Mark also hosted Bible Study to the Singles during 2000s and now, serving in church in Central NY. In 2018, for the first time, Mark preached before the hearing church.

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy

You can invite Mr. Falso to preach in your church or can assist in any way for your Christian organization or church such as establish new Deaf ministry, new Singles ministry, or simple to preach in your church. Contact him at <u>bigheartministries@yahoo.com</u>.

God bless!

BIBLIOGRAPHY AND THANKS.

First to thank the Lord Jesus Christ for His Word in the Holy Bible.

Fonts:

- Easter font by Kingthings
- Christmas by Chris Hansen

There are many links regarding to Jesus's birth and death. Please read with precaution that many religious groups will deny Jesus because they will say He was born on Christmas and died on Good Friday.

Awesome reading -

http://presscore.ca/the-egyptian-roots-of-the-roman-catholic-church

http://www.equip.org/article/the-cult-of-isis-and-osiris/

http://stepintothestory.ca/know-nimrod-married-mother/

http://www.cgsf.org/dbeattie/calendar/?roman=6bc

http://www.marieslibrary.com/PDF_Articles/JesusBornCourseOfAbijah.pdf

http://www.marieslibrary.com/PDF_Articles/JesusDiedHebrewCalendar.pdf

http://www.marieslibrary.com/PDF_Articles/JesusDiedCalendarWorkbook30-31AD.pdf

Among many articles online.

The Christmas and Easter Conspiracy.

Discover the truth of when Jesus was really born and when He died. Certainly not on those two holidays. They have nothing to do with Jesus Christ as matter of fact!

Mark Falso

Mark Falso is a seasoned author and is Born-Again Christian who read like the Bereans and discovered the Truth in the Bible that all needs to know.

Mark Resides in Central NY and is serving in church.



Big Heart Ministries

c/o Mark Falso

Liverpool, NY 13088